
 
INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA  
Monday, May 15, 2023 – 8:00 p.m.  

Lakeshore Library – Community Room 
 
 

1. Call to Order   

• Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 

 
2. Approval of Agenda          (copy & motion)  
 

[Motion #2023.  – THAT the agenda of the May 15, 2023 meeting be approved 
as presented.] 

 
3. Declaration of Interest 

None at time of agenda creation 
 
4. Delegations to the Board 

None at time of agenda creation 
 
5. Consent Agenda         (motion) 
 

a) Approval of Previous Minutes          (copy) 
Recommendation 
THAT the April 17, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes be approved as presented.  

 
b) Correspondence           (copy) 

Recommendation 
THAT Correspondence Items 5b.01.01 to 5b.10.01 for May 15, 2023 be 
received. 
 

c) CEO Report           (copy) 
Recommendation 
THAT the CEO Report 5c.01.01 for April 2023 be received. 
 

Consent Recommendation 
[Motion #2023. – THAT the consent agenda items 5 a) to 5 c), and the 
recommendations contained therein be approved as presented.] 
 

6. Business Arising  
 a)  Truth & Reconciliation Committee 

o Membership  
 

b)  CEO Evaluation Committee 
o Recruitment 

 

2a.01.01 



 2 

 
 
 
7. Reports  

a)       Municipal Council Report                 (copy & information sharing) 
 
b) Library Board Report        (information sharing) 

 
c) Board Committee Reports           
 

o Finance Committee Report          (copy & motion) 
 

 [Motion #2023.   That the Finance Committee Report LIB-03-2023 regarding 
the 2023 Q1 Update dated May 15, 2023 be received.] 
 
 
d) Health & Safety Update                           (copy & motion) 
 
[Motion #2023.   THAT the minutes of the JHSC April 20, 2023 meeting be 
received.] 
 
e) Q1 2023 Collections Report LIB-04-2023   (copy & motion) 
 
[Motion #2023.   THAT the Q1 2023 Collections Report LIB-04-2023 be 
received.] 
 
f) Economic & Social Value of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library Report 

 LIB-05-2023        (copy & motion) 
 
[Motion #2023.   THAT the Economic & Social Value of the Innisfil ideaLAB & 
Library Report LIB-05-2023 be received.] 
 
 

8.  Policy   
a) EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-11  be 
approved as presented.] 
 
b) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation (CASL) 
Compliance Policy #2023-12 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Canada’s Anti-Spam 
Legislation (CASL) Compliance Policy #2023-12  be approved as presented.] 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
c) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Rules of Conduct Policy #2023-13 

(copy & motion) 
[Motion #2023. THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Rules of Conduct 
Policy #2023-13  be approved as presented.] 
 

9. Strategic Issues 
None at time of agenda creation 
           

10.  New Business 
 None at time of agenda creation 
  

11. Comments and Announcements 
 a)   Calendar of Events                (link) 

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index 

  
12. In Camera 
 No in camera at time of agenda creation 
  
13. Adjournment  
 

[Motion #2023. – THAT the meeting be adjourned] 
 
 

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index


 4 

 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST for May 15, 2023 

 

5b.01.01 
April 24, 2023, Innisfil Mayor, Lynn Dollin, Letter of appreciation for 
the Library’s participation in Winter Weekends 

 
(copy) 

5b.02.01 
April 19, 2023, Orillia.com, article entitled Springwater Library 
Postpones Presentation Over Safety Concerns, written by Nikki 
Cole 

 
(copy) 

5b.03.01 
April 19, 2023, Simcoe.com, article entitled Springwater Public 
Library’s Drag Queen Story Time Presentation Cancelled Due to 
‘Safety Concerns’, written by Brett Glover 

 
(copy) 

5b.04.01 
April 21, 2023, CBC News, article entitled Libraries Are In The 
Political Crosshairs As They Fight Back Against U.S. Book Bans, 
written by Nick Logan 

 
(copy) 

5b.05.01 
Federation of Ontario Public Libraries (FOPL), 2023 report entitled 
Truth & Reconciliation Plan 

 
(copy) 

5b.06.01 
December 14, 2022, Harvard Business Review, article entitled 
ChatGPT is a Tipping Point for AI, written by Ethan Mollick 

 
(copy) 

5b.07.01 
January 17, 2023, npr, article entitled This 22-Year-Old is Trying to 
Save Us From ChatGPT Before it Changes Writing Forever  

 
(copy) 

5b.08.01 
April 20, 2023, The Guardian, article entitled Third of UK Librarians 
Asked to Censor or Remove Books, Research Reveals, written by 
Sarah Shaffi 

 
(copy) 

5b.09.01 Card to IPL Board from Susan Baues  
 

(copy) 

5b.10.01 
Toronto Star, April 29, 2023, article entitled Expansion of Library 
Hours is great Policy, written by Emma Teitel 

 
(copy) 

 



1 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for April 17, 2023 

INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES  

Monday, April 17, 2023 – 7:00 p.m.  
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library - Lakeshore Branch 

In Attendance: Anne Smith, Rob Nicol, Councillor Jennifer Richardson, Barb 
Baguley, Sue Bennett, Rhonda Flanagan, Cynthia Gordon, 
Raj Grover 

Staff in Attendance: Erin Scuccimarri, Susan Baues, Jennifer Miyasaki, Mandy 
Pethick 

Regrets: Councillor Robert Saunders 

1. CALL TO ORDER

• The meeting was called to order at 6:58 p.m.

• Land Acknowledgement Statement was delivered by the Board Chair

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion #2023.29 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson  
Seconded by: Sue Bennett 

THAT the agenda of the April 17, 2023, meeting be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

3. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
There were no disclosures of interest.

4. DELEGATIONS TO THE BOARD
a) Misinformation and the Threat to Democracy, Beatrice Wayne, Research

Manager, Samara Center for Democracy

• Beatrice Wayne shared a presentation with the Board, followed by a Q&A

• A list of resources will be shared with the Board

• Mandy Pethick provided further information about current and planned
initiatives at the Library to combat mis/dis/mal information including helping
patrons become media-literate

5a.01.01



2 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for April 17, 2023 
 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

• The CEO highlighted items in the CEO Report; Non-fiction for teens was 
relocated to the Young Adult collection including materials related to physical 
and mental health. 

• HackLAB programs for youth have an excellent uptake; MakerKids was so 
popular there was a waitlist triple the size of the class 

• The Deputy CEO commented on the findings from the 2021 census and the 
Simcoe County Local Immigration Partnership.  There has been a dramatic 
increase in residents whose first language is not English; using these 
demographics and statistics helps the Library shape its programming and 
services. 
 

Motion #2023.30 
 Moved by:  Sue Bennett  
 Seconded by: Rhonda Flanagan 
 
 THAT the consent agenda items 5 a) to 5 d), and the recommendations 

contained therein be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

 
6. BUSINESS ARISING 

No business arising 
 

 
7. REPORTS 

a) Municipal Council Report  

• A report was shared with the package 

• The CEO highlighted the appendices relevant to the Community Benefits 
Charge Strategy report, and the related open house taking place on April 
19, 2023 at 6:30 pm  
 

b) Library Board Report 

• Chair Smith led a round table discussion with attendees; items shared 
included: 
o Lions Club eyeglasses drive collected 8000 pairs of eyeglasses to 

send to those in need 
o Rotary is hosting a harvest dinner at the Lakeshore branch on 

September 16, 2023 
o Seedy Saturdays are well attended 
o RVH staff looking at ways to use 3D printers as a medical resource 

• It was also noted that this will be the Deputy CEO’s last Board meeting, as 
she is retiring this month 
 

 
 



3 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for April 17, 2023 
 

c) Board Committee Reports 

• Finance Committee 
o The Committee met on April 5, 2023 
o Rob Nicol was appointed Finance Committee Chair 
o The Committee proposed moving to a quarterly model for financial 

reporting 
 

Motion #2023.31 
Moved by:  Raj Grover   
Seconded by:  Sue Bennett 

      
THAT the operating and capital financial reports included in the IPL monthly 
Board agenda package, change to a quarterly reporting model; and FURTHER 
THAT the Finance Committee will meet and review the financials quarterly, prior 
to inclusion in the subsequent IPL Board agenda package. 

         CARRIED. 
 

d) Health & Safety Update 
 

Motion #2023.32 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson   
Seconded by:  Cynthia Gordon 

      
THAT the minutes of the JHSC March 16, 2023 meeting be received. 

          CARRIED. 
 

8. POLICY  

a) EMPLOYMENT – Reporting Absenteeism & Lateness Policy #E-2023-08 
 

Motion #2023.33 
Moved by:  Raj Grover   
Seconded by: Rob Nicol 

THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Reporting Absenteeism & Lateness Policy #E-2023-

08 be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

b) EMPLOYMENT – Self Funded Leave Policy #E-2023-09 
 

Motion #2023.34 
Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan  
Seconded by: Sue Bennett 



4 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for April 17, 2023 
 

THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Self Funded Leave Policy #E-2023-09 be approved 

as presented. 

CARRIED. 

c) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Collection Management Policy #2023-10 
 

Motion #2023.35 
Moved by:  Barb Baguley   
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon  

THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Collection Management Policy 

#2023-10 be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

9. STRATEGIC ISSUES 
 There were no Strategic Issues to discuss this month. 

 
 
10.  NEW BUSINESS 

No new business 
 
 

11. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCMENTS 
a) Calendar of Events 

o Link to Library offerings was provided in the agenda. 
o Annual Presentation to Council date is May 10, 2023 

 
 

12. IN CAMERA  
 No In Camera 

  
 

13.   ADJOURNMENT 
Motion #2023.36 

  Moved by:  Barb Baguley 
  

THAT the meeting be adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

 
 

  



5 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for April 17, 2023 
 

 
DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Library Board meeting will be held on 

Monday, May 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Innisfil Public Library & ideaLAB – Lakeshore Branch – Community Room 

 
 
 
 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Anne Smith, Board Chair    Erin Scuccimarri, Secretary 



   April 24, 2023 

Erin Scuccimarri  Via email 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library  (escuccimarri@innisfil.ca) 

Dear Erin, 

On behalf of Council, I want to thank Innisfil ideaLAB & Library for taking part in this 
year's Winter Weekends events.  

We received great feedback about all of the winter activities that were scheduled 
throughout January and February. Your participation definitely increased the fun and 
excitement.  

We really hope that your Winter Weekends event was a success, and we look forward to 
having you participate again next year. We would specifically like to send a shout out to 
Wendy for her creativity and planning skills! We appreciate your support. 

Yours very truly, 

Mayor Lynn Dollin 
ldolllin@innisfil.ca 
705.436.3740 ext.1101 

5b.01.01

mailto:ldolllin@innisfil.ca


�����������	���
�������������

���������������������� ����� ��� ����������!��� �"����#��#��� $�%%��&��'(���)*�+�+,�-��.�/0

'�(������
�����12�3(���45
����/61�����1�
�2���
77�6(8
���4���6�����������(��4�
99��4�:���68��4�(
���7���
�8�
4�;6��������2��9��:�	
��1����(���(���8�86�����<�
7��2����6��*=�
����8��4����	���1�
�2>������
�9�8�
�(�����
�������8
2?
3(���45
����0
2���@����7���&�64	�������	�5������	���A��(	���?BC9
4���6((��8

5b.02.01



���������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ! "#���������������������������$���������%���������#���������������������������������������������#��������������������������������&'���������������������������������������������(�������������)�������������������������������������#�����������������������������������������������������'�������������%����������������������������#����������������������������#�����������������������������������������������������������������#*��������������������������+�����������������������������������������������
�������������������#������������������������������������������������������������������������,����%������������������
������+����-�������'����
�������������������������������������������������������#����������������������������������������������������.��������������������$������������������������������/������������+�������������������������������������������������������������������#�����������/�����������������������������������������������������������������������������&0�������������������������.�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#�������������������������������������������#*������������������������������&����������*���������������������&1��/���%���������%���/��������������������������#*��������#����������������������������$����#���������������������������#�2����3����#��������������������������������������������3���������������������������������������������������������4��������������������������������$�������������������������������������
�������������������4�����������������������/�������������������������������������������������������&0����������������������������������������#���#�������������/���������������������������������(0����)�5�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#*���������&,�������#�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������#���������������������#������������������������������������������������������������������/����#6��������



����������	
������	�
����������	���������������������	�������������������������������������������	�������	���������
��	�������������������������������������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������	�������	����	����������������������������������	��������������������������������������	��������������������������������������������	��� ���	���������������������������	���������������	����!������ ���������	������	��������	��	��������������	��	����������	���	�����	�����������	����"#���	������	���������������������������������	������������������������	�������������	����������������������������	��#�������������	���	�����������������������������������������	����������$�����!������ �������������������������������	��%&%&��������������������������������	��"�����	����������������	���	�����	�����������	����������������	�����������	����'����������%()*+#,-��������	���	��(��	����������������������������������������������������������(��	�����������������������������������������������	��#������������	���	�����������������������
����������������������������������������������	��"����������������������
��������������������(��	���������	������������������.�������/	����������	�
����������������������������������������	����������������������������	
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������	��0����	����	��������������������	�����������������	����	���������������������������	��������"�����	������������������
�����������	������������	���������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������	����������������������������������������	��1��������������������������������������������	�����������	�����	���	�������������������	����������"��������������	�������������	��������������������	��!������ �������233�45�467�8459: ;<=7�<�8459:�>37<? @74479�45�467�73>459A7B594�<�C>84<D7 28D�<�EF784>5G



���������������	
��������������������������������������� ��������!�"�!��!�#�!�$�!!��%�&� �������'��!��! (�)*)+



�������������	
�����
��������	�����������	���	�����������������������	
��������	����������������������������������	�������������� ����!�"�#!��$�$������$���
�%�
�&&'��(��	������&)���	�&*	�����+�&����&���&�����&�	
�������	��&�������&��&��&+�����&�������+)������	��&���&,����&��&�����	�&
�	��&-������&.�	��/&��&����&��������&�	�����&�����0� 0���	&1�.���1��&�$/&���!1��	��&���&������&1��&�$/&���!

5b.03.01



��������	�
���	��������������������������������������	���������������		������	����������������������������� ��!�"������������
����������!������������
�#��$�������������%%����������!����%%��������&�'����	����(	��%�����%���!���������	�����������%��%�������%��������������������	)��������������!�*�%��	�+,-����������$�����������������������$$���������%�����������	��$��%��
��!����!�.�����������
����������$���������������%�����$�����!�	����%��������������%������	�������������%��%���������������$�����$������������������������
������
����������������	�������/0�������� �	!������������������������������%����
����

���������1������������2��������%����$��%%����$��
 �	!������������������%��������������%��%�����$�������3 �������$�������������������������%������������������������%�$��%���!������/�����	�
�����!�����!�����������%��%����������&����$����		�������%%������	�����
��	�	�������$��%%��������$�&	������4��5%���!���������3� �	!������

��������������%��$��%���!������%���%������������	��������%������%��%�������%���������������������!���������	��6�����(�
������������������%���$$������������������������	��������������!�.������������
��



���������	
������
����
���
������
��
��
�������������
�������
�
�����
����
����
��
���
�����	
���
�����
��
�����
��
��
�����������
 ��
���
��������
��
������
�����
�������	
��������
����
��
����
����!������
��������������"��	
"���
����
���
������
�
���������
��
#����������$%�
��
��
����
����
������
��
������
���
��
����
����
������
����
����!��������
����
���
�����
����������
���
���
����
���������&�����
����
����
�����
���������
�������
����
���
��������
��
�������	$
���
�������
���������
�����
$'���������	
����
�������������!�����
���������
�������������
����
������
�
�����
��
�������
��
��
������
��
���
���
�������
�������
��
����$(��
)����
����
�����
����
����
������
��������*��
��
�����������	
����
�������
��
�����
������
������
�����
���
�������&
���
����
��
���
�����+�
�����������
����+�
����
����������





�����

���	
	���
	�������������
��	����
�	�
����������
��


�
�������������
��

����� ��!!"#$%�&''(��')'#�'**#+,!,#+'-#.'/##&!*+#-% /+�+ '!!#$,"#*,"'/#+�'+0

'1('+,!!�)

2 3&4#5��6�7�2'8!69#!,'�:;(+<=0<><?@:>>;ABCDE4�!,F(��,'�:;(+ %<=

G'! �'�,!#*4%��#�#$�,)0D'1�!"#%��(+#,'!,! �!$((#+,#*%#3�%% /+�+ '!#�;(+ %=?0�!3#$�,)%'��'+!

"'%��!('3 �%-'', �5,#3#�! �'+!"$,, �5,"' +($/% 3% /+�+)!)!,'-+�,"'+,"��*#%%#8�*'�'+�%H$�5'I!

JKL�MN JOPQRQ

5b.04.01



����������������	��
��������������������������������������������������������	�����������������

����������������������������������� ��������������!����"

���������

#�	��������������$���������������%�����������������������&�������	�����������������������

��������'��������������������%������������������������	��
��	������������������������������

�������������&����������

����������������&�	����	��������������������������������	����������������&�����������&����

�������������������������	��
��&����������������	�������������

()��������#����*�����'� ����'�������������������&�	����	��������������������	������	���

����������������������	������	��
���������������'�	������	��
������%������%��
��

���'������������������%����&��������������������������������������������������������������

���������+������&�	����	��������������������,-������'����������������������#./ 0�	��
�����

������&��&�������������������

1�+������&&����������%��
�������2�&�	���������������&������%�����%�������������

����������������������'������&����������������������������������������������������#./ 0

�������� �����%��������������������&����������������&����	���%����	��
���	��������������&��

������%�����������&����������������������	��������������������������������������

345�678�9:;8<6:=�;>?76@�A4B8A8<6�;8@C;?8D�><�;8@94<@8�64�6;:<@�><E=C@>B>6F�><

E=:@@;44A@

G5>668;�D;49@�94=>EF�:?:><@6�A>@?8<D8;><?H�D8:D<:A><?�6;:<@?8<D8;�9849=8

I��������J�������'��������������������&��������&�������������������������!�K��������'�����

�����&������L��&�����������%�����������%�������%L����������������������������������	������

%������������������������������&�������������������������L�������������������%���������������

%������&�	����	����������&&��������	��L

L���������������	���	��������������	���������M���	��
���������&��������������%������������

����'�����
��%'���������%�������������������������	���	���������'L����������



�����������	��
����������

�������������������������������������� ����!����"������!!�#�$�������%�#����������!#�&'()

��!!����*+�,������!���!���������,����������������#-������������,����.��������/�%�!�0��������

*�����1./0*2�!����������!!��-��-������������������!��3��,�����!!���������������#�4�5�!�������5��!

�������!4�,���������!�!��������(�6���./0*����#�����#������������4����!������4�,�����������������(�

6���+������7�#-���/���������%���#����������������,��#��-����������#-����!������8�#���#�39

���������!!����!!���%�������������%�#��3������!�%�!���,�-�%����������#���:�����!���������������

���������������,���#���!!�����������#����������#(�

;�����!�3����!!��9����������#���"�!�����,��������������0�����3�.����������9������,����

��-���<���������%�!%�#��������./0*�!������9����#���3���������,��#��-���!!��,,�����!!�!��������:

���!���������������������=����#����������9���������!�!�����������!!���,,���������������������

��--���������������!��-�����5������(

+�%���!�>����#�������������������*(+(���%���!���#3��!���#��������������������������=����������������#���

�����!�!��������9������������������#�!���!��?���!��������=��-���������������!#�!�������������������!���!��������

��#��%�������������-����������!�,��#��-��,�!����������#��:�����#���3���������!��(�1;�%���@������AB���3�C��-��2



���������	
��������	������������	��������������������������������������
����������������

��������

�����������	�
���
�������������	���������������������������������
������
�����������
����

�����������������
�����������������������������������������	
�������	�������������	���� 

�����������������!���������������
������������	�����
��������	��������
�"#"�$�����������

���	
�����������������������������
������������������
��������������������	
������
����

���

������������
�����������	��������
� ��������������%������������������������������������&� 

�'����	������
������������������������%'�������������
�����������
���������������	
�	�����

����
�����������%�������������	����������&�%�������� �

������
��������(	���
�&���������
����������������������������	
���������������
�����������&���

�������������������
�����������������������

������������
�������������������������� 

)�����
��*��

����������������+�
�����������*����	���,������������������������������������	��
���	��������

��������	����	
���������	
�����������������������������������������������%�������%���������������������

������ �-�	����������)�����
��*��

��.



��������	
�����������������������������������������������������������
���

��������

����
�������������������������������
���������

����� ��������������������������

���������

!"#$$#%�&'()�*"&+�$(,%'%(#&�'$%#')-�.'/#�0"$$#0+("1�)#/#$"2*#1+�2"$(0(#&�(1�2$'0#�+.'+�3"4$)

2%#/#1+�&#54'$$-�#52$(0(+�*'+#%('$&�6%"*�,#(17�'�2'%+�"6�+.#(%�0"$$#0+("1&�8�#&2#0('$$-�3.#1�(+

0"*#&�+"�0.($)%#19&�&#0+("1&�"%�&0.""$�$(,%'%(#&�8�'1)�+.#%#�'%#�'$%#')-�3'-&�6"%�+.#�24,$(0�+"

0.'$$#17#�,"":&�6"%�%#/(#3;�

<4+�&.#�'1)�"+.#%�$(,%'%('1&�=4#&+("1�3."�)#>1#&�3.'+�(&�?",&0#1#?�"%�(1'22%"2%('+#�6"%

0.($)%#1;

@.($#�+.#%#�'%#�&"*#�&+'+#�74()#$(1#&�(1�+.'+�%#7'%)A�!"#$$#%�&'()�+.#�$'174'7#�"6�+.#�B#1'+#

,($$�'1)�+.#�C"4&#�%4$#�'%#�?&"�/'74#�+.'+�(+�*#'1&�+.'+�&"*#"1#�41)#%�DE�0"4$)19+�3'$:�(1+"

+.#�$(,%'%-�3(+."4+�'�2'%#1+;?�

F1�.#%�/(#3A�'�2'%#1+�'$$"3(17�+.#(%�0.($)�+"�.'/#�'�$(,%'%-�0'%)�*#'1&�+.'+�0.($)�.'&�2#%*(&&("1

+"�'00#&&�3.'+�+.#�$(,%'%-�.'&�+"�"66#%;�

GH��IJ�K���������������������
��	���������	�������������������L�

M(,%'%(#&�'%#�41)#%�$(+#%'$�'++'0:�(1�N:%'(1#A�'1)�()#"$"7(0'$�'++'0:�'*()�O"%+.�P*#%(0'Q&�04$+4%#�3'%&;�R56"%)

$(,%'%('1�'1)�'4+."%�S(0.'%)�R/#1)#1�(&�1"+�',"4+�+"�&+'-�=4(#+�',"4+�(+;�C#�'%74#&�+.'+�$(,%'%(#&�)#6#1)�"4%

)#*"0%'+(0�6%##)"*&A�'1)�)#&#%/#�"4%�)#6#10#�(1�%#+4%1;

����������������������������


P00"%)(17�+"�!"#$$#%A�+.#�)#*'1)&�6"%�,"":�%#*"/'$&�'%#�1"+�"1$-�(10%#'&(17A�&.#�&'()A�+.#-

'22#'%�+"�,#�2'%+�"6�'1�"%7'1(T#)�#66"%+;�

H���
 UVLUW

X.#�M(,%'%('1�@."�@"1Q+�B+'-�Y4(#+



���������	�
	��������������������������������������������������
��������
���������
��������

�
����������������������������������
��������������
���������������������
����

����
�����

���������������������������������������������
�����������������������

 ����������
	���������!
�"����#������$�����
������%
���&
��"�������������
�	������
��

������
������������
�����������
�������������������������������������������������
�

���
����
������
������
����#������
��%
����
��"����������������
���'��	�����������#
��

%
����
����#���(�����$����%�������� ��

����#���)����������#�����%��������)
������

*��������	
���+	��,��������,������)
��������������������
����#���,����+�����

(�������������	��������%
�����������������

��������������������������������
���
�����
���

��
��"-(#.������������������������������������/���
������������������
��

��������������
��

��
���
����'����
������0�����������

�����
����'���������
��0�����
����������������

�
����
�������
�������
��	
��
���	����

123456�7�89:�;<3<�=>?@A@>ABC�A@D�EFGH>BF�?AIJ�AFA>BCH�?99J�?ABCK�HG@DAHC�H9�LMBN>BFO�

���
��������������P��������������������������������

��������������������
���������
�������	���������������

Q����������
�����������������R�����������������,�����)����$���������������������������
��
��#���*�	��-������

S�����"��������������������
��%���
��T�%����-���������
�������������������������&�������� ������������

"�������������
����
��U���
��T�����V
�������&�������������������
��
��������'	�����
������������
�

	�
�������
��S$!� �������

WDBC9@CG>X�?Y�ABY�9HGD@�BAZD

P����������
��(�������*
���������
������	�
����
��&�
�����-��������'	������������������
��

����
���
���
��������������
������

�������
������
����������
���������������������


����
����	��

)������������������[�������
�����������������
��[�����������
�����������
����
����������

�	���R���������������	����������	�������������
��	�������
���
����������������
�������

��������
���������		�
	������������	�������������������������
�������
�	���

4GD�WM@@DBH \]Ô_

 �������������������R�����������
�������	��������������



���������	
����	��	��������������	
������	�������	��������������������		����������

�������������	���
����	�����������������������������������������������������������
���������


����	����
�����������������
����	�����

�������������������	���������
	���	�������������	�����������	����	�����	����	�����
�������	�

���������������������������������������	����������������
�	�����	�����������������������	�

�������������������������	���	�����	
���	��������������������������	����

� !�"
�������#���
�����������������������������������������������	����	���
������������

�$�����	��������������������	
���
	����������������������������������������	
������

���	����	���	��"
�����������������	����	�������

%&'()*+,&�+(�-'('.'

#�	������������������	�������	����	��������/���������	��0�1����2����
����	��1������� ���������

!	����� �	�����3�������������������������	�������� �	�������!	���"
������4/015



�����������	�
���	��������	�����������������������������������������������������������	

�����������������������������

������������������������
���	����������������������������������������������	������������

���	��

��������	������� ��	!� ��������������������
���	����"�	�����������#�����!�$�����������%

&�����������"���	���
�����������	�����	���������������������������!����������������
������

��������������������������������������	!��������������������������������������������!���������������

����������������������������������������������������������!'�����	�!�	��������!������������

����������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������	��!

�����������	����	����������������������������	�����������������������������������������	���

���������!�

 ��	!� ����������������������������������
�������������������������������
���	����"�	�����������#�����!

$�����������%�&�����������"���	���
����������(�������	��!� ��	!� �����)



�����������	�
������������������		��������������������������������������������		����


��������������������������������		�����
��������

��������

	�	���������
����������	�

�
��
��������

� !"#$�%&'%"(')�*'�+,-,.,/)�#( ')0"'1"(�%&223'*#$� )� '#*4#( ')�)"'#*2"'#�)3(0")

5( 0�63""'��#&($�7*2"�)388&(#"()�)9&3#�1&:'�8(&#")#"()�*'�;&<3*#= 2>�?,;,

@��������	��������������	����A�	����	����B�A�C
������������������������	�������������D���
���

�����������BB���������������D���������
�����B
������
BB�������������������
B��

�����������

������
���C���
������������
��	���
���������BB������������������

AE����	��������	������������
C��������������
�
BB���������
���A������������������	������������		

��B����C�����������
		���
���
B��

�����
�����������C�
B�������F��������
���
B�������
�	�

������	��G���������������	���������

HI7;J�K�L,�,�1*M*1"1�&M"(�#( ')0"'1"(�(*09#)N

�����OP��OQOR�S�T��������
B���		��������������������������
�	���������������������������������
�����������

U������V�������E���������������W
�������������������������������		����������C
C����������������
���X�	���

����������
�Y��	�����������������

Z[�1 $)� 0&K

I�%&3'#($�1*M*1"1N�7( ')0"'1"(�(*09#)�*'�#9"�L,�,

Z\N]̂



���������	
���������
��	����
���	���������������������

��		����
���
�����	�����
����������
�����������	���		�	

���� �!"!#$%&'()!%*%&%+�,--�.'/012�.323.43&+

5'2'136�$%&'()!%*%&%+7%



�����������	
��

�


����	
����	���
	����	��

�
�������������������������� �����!����"�����
� ������#���$��$� �!�!�!#�����%��� %������� "�� $� ��#���������������" %��������������� ����&��'�&� %����"��������������#���$��$� �!(��%������"!�� ��" �����������&%�����
�������#������ ��$� ������%��)����������"� ������"���� �!����(����� ������$�� %������"!�� �&��������������%�� ��� ��������� ���"����#���$�!�!#����!�$�&��%� ������������ %�����&���$� �!�(*+,+-./012�13�42/.-01�567809�:07-.-0+;<�=>=?<�@

5b.05.01



�����������	
������	
��
���������������������������� ! �� ���"�## $$ ���%�&! $������� ��'(�"�!!$���)�� ��*�+� !���� $�����#����� ��������,��! &��� �$��$���� �� ����������� ����-! &��� �$������$$�� �� ��$�����$$�����������.���,��&����$���//! �/����0 ���1�.$���%��, ���#��� �/0�!�#����� $#$����$�%%�������$����!!$*�����2345����������������� ! �� ���4!������$ ���$�����'(�"�!!$����)�� ���0��#��! &���.�$��, ���!��$-�����%��, ��$�����##����� ��$��������6�#&���5 &��� �$*)�� � ���!!.-�����2345�7�������$��$����� $�$�#��!��$���������# �����1�1�����&����!������ ����,����.����� ��$�%%��� �/�����#�#&��$� ����� �������� ! �� ���00���$*�

89



������ ����	
���������������������������������������������� ���!�������"�����������#������� ������$%���#��� ���&'�(�"������������������)�������)��������������)��������� �� �����)��$ *�+,-.�./0������1��� �2324%���#��� �� �"���������(�#���5�����������������6������ ������������������������������������� �� �����������#������#�������7���89�"�����������#�������9�������#������#���5��5��)�������������"���������)�������������� ������������������$ :
�;��.,�.+<.=�>?>@������������A����))#���������)������� ��&B�(�C%'������D������ ���������������9���!��)����� ���8����5���������8���!�&'�($ �.+�E���	�--F1���������5�1��� 2324��8�����!���� ����8���������8��)������������5�!����������������#������#������������8������ �C%'����8����!���7��)��8��������� ���� ����8�������!������$ G������� �� �232472H���8�������G������8�����!���"�����������))���������� �8�I��������������#���������'������$ (�����BA(�1��� �2324� ���8�������)��������!������8���))������9���"������������������� ������������$�JC�����K49�KHL "��2324�G�������8��������7��8���!���))#����#���������0BMN"������ ���� #������������������������������#������������������#������#�����$JC����H4L �������&����2324���8�����7��8������!���))#����#���������������������������8����$JC����OPL Q�--�>?>>�8����#������#������8���))#����#��������� ������������������������������8����������������!������ ���9�G�����8���9���$�JC�����R49�S3L �������T���2324�G���G��������8�))#���!�B��������"���������U�������V(���������������WB"U(�X$ Y���./�>?>>'�������))#�� ��%������� �C&(��Z��� �V�N�������������C�))����N����$ *�+,-.�./

[\



�����������	
�����������������	�	�����	��������������������	�����������	������	
�	
��������	�����	����������������������	������������������������
�������������	������������������������	���	�	�����������	��������������������������	��	
������������������������������������������	���������	������������	�����������	��������
�������	��������	
�����������	�����������������������	�����		������	���������������������	����������������������	�������������	�����������������	��	����	
����
	�	��������������������������������	
��	���
����������������������������������	������������ �����������	��������������	�������������	������	��������������	�����	����������	���
�	����	����!���������������
�������	��������� ������������	��	����������	�����	�����	
������	�������	
����
������������"�����	��������
�����������	�����	����
����
#$%&'())&*+&+�,'-./.-.&01,0&+�(*�-2&�',330�-(�,'-.(*

456789:�8;�<:578=8;>�?65�@:@A:5<B�CDEFGB�HIJJ65K�L6=ML�=6@@I;8KN�:9I=MK86;�O8KP�5:<6I5=:<�M;9�=I558=ILI@@MK:58ML<�M7M8LMAL:�8;�KP:�JIAL8=�L8A5M5NB�QB�R?�M7M8LMAL:S�6J:;�L6=MLP8<K65N�=6LL:=K86;<�=6;K:;K�K6�:9I=MK65<�KP56I>P�:9IT8K<BUVWXVY�FZXY[YZV\
]̂ FF�_D�̂]_̀Da�bc
CDEF



����������	
��������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������	���������������� ����! "�#$%&'(�)'*'+,-.(/�012'3.1+4�5,3�3'4'3*'�6,007(.2.'48�74'�9()./'(,74+1(/71/'4�:&'3'�1--3,-3.12';< =�>;�?3,*.)'�07+2.@+1(/71/'�6,++'62.,(4;�A;�B7--,32�6,007(.2C�'(2.2.'42,�-3,*.)'�9()./'(,74�+1(/71/'�-3,/3104�,(4.2';DEFGEH��IGHJHIEK< =�
��������	
���������������������������������������������L���	���������������
�������������������
�����
���M�������������������	������������	����������������	�������������N���������	�	�����������OP����������������	�����O���
��������������������������������	�������������������������O����Q�������������Q������������������������������
��������O���
�������	���������	������������������R����	�����������S���������
����������������Q��
����������P��������S����P�����������������������������������	����������	�	��������������������O������������
��
�����������	����������T	�������������������������	��������������	�������������������O�������������������	�����
������ ����! "�#U
%&'(�)'*'+,-.(/�012'3.1+4�5,3�3'4'3*'�6,007(.2.'48�74'�9()./'(,74+1(/71/'4�:&'3'�1--3,-3.12';< =�>;�?3,*.)'�07+2.@+1(/71/'�6,++'62.,(4;�A;�B7--,32�6,007(.2C�'(2.2.'42,�-3,*.)'�9()./'(,74�+1(/71/'�-3,/3104�,(4.2';�V;�?3,*.)'.(5,3012.,(�2,�2&'�6,007(.2C�,(�WXYZ9?�1()�23'12.'48�:.2&�1�5,674,(�+,61+�6,007(.2.'4;DEFGEH��IGHJHIEK < =�



����������	
����������	��
����������	������
����
��������	��
��
����	���������	���
���������
�������
���������	
����������	
�	
������������	���
����
	�����	����������������	���	���	
�������	
�  !
"#$%&'(�)*�&*+,(#%&-(�&*�./.0�$*�12345"�)*'�6$7�86(�9(,8�:#)-8&-(,)*'�:#&*-&:;(,�-)*�9(�&*-$#:$#)8('�&*�:<9;&-�;&9#)#&(,=>?@AB=�5*-;<'(�12345"�9(,8�:#)-8&-(,�)*'�:#&*-&:;(,�&*�;&9#)#C�:;)**&*D)*'�:#$D#)EE&*D=�.=�F'$:8�)*�5*'&D(*$<,�F-G*$7;('D(E(*8H8)8(E(*8�76&-6�)''#(,,(,�8#()8CI�-('('J<*-('('�)*'�8#)'&8&$*);8(##&8$#C�76(#(�86(�;&9#)#C�&,�;$-)8('=KLMNLO�APNOQOPLR

STAA�U?�TSUV?W�XY>?@A



����������	
�����	�
����	����
�������	���������	
���
�����	����
���
��
��

�����	������
���	���	����
����������	
����������
�����
�����������	��
���
���������
��
����
��������
��	������� !�����������������
������
�
�����	������	
���	����
�����	������
��
����
�����	�"���
����������	�"��
�������"�	��������
��������		��������#����
��
�	�����	
��
�����������������	
�������
����������������������	�������
��������		����
���	����
�������	�"�������$�����
�������
���������"��	���
�������������
������
��
���������"��
����������������������%��
���"�
���������&����
�
��
�����������
���	�������	���'()*+,-./�-012/*,-3-04�5+*�6/67/*�8-7*9*-/2�+0�*/3+03-8-9:-+0�93:-,-:-/2;<=>?@;�)*+,-./�933A*9:/�3+88/3:-+02�BC-3C�390�2ADD+*:�3A**-3A8A6�90.D/*2+098�/.A39:-+0�90.�9B9*/0/22�+5�3+0:/6D+*9*E�90.�C-2:+*-398F0.-4/0+A2�3+66A0-:-/2�90.�8/493E�-22A/2;�G;�)*+,-./�3A**-3A8A62ADD+*:2;�H;�)*+,-./�D*+4*962�:C9:�2ADD+*:�5+*�-0:/*3A8:A*98A0./*2:90.-04I�/6D9:CEI�6A:A98�*/2D/3:I�90.�A0./*2:90.-04�+5C-2:+*-398�-22A/2;�J;�F0,-:/�F0.-4/0+A2�2D/9K/*2I�/8./*2I�2:+*E:/88/*2I9A:C+*2I�/:3�:+�C+8.�/,/0:2I�B+*K2C+D2�+*�2D/9K/*�2/*-/2;LMNOMP�?QOPRPQMS
TU??�V=�UTVW=X�YZ
<=>?
����������	
��������������	���
��
���	���	�������
��
���	������
����
�����������	�����	
��	��
�����[����
��	����	����	
�!������	����
�����	��������
���	
��������!�	���������	��������
������������������	��������
������������	���	�����
���!��������\
����]���	
�����������	
�	
�����̂������	��%
����
	���_�	������
���	���[�����	���
����	
��TU??�V=�UTVW=X�Ỳ
)*+,-./�-0�2/*,-3-04�5+*�6/67/*2;<=>?@;�a+*�bcde�2-:/2I�B+*K�B-:C�6A2/A6�922+3-9:-+02�:+�9.,903/6A2/A6�D*93:-3/2�2A**+A0.-04�F0.-4/0+A2�3+0:/0:;�LMNOMP�?QOPRPQMS <=>?



��
��������	
���
���������������������	����
������������	��������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������	��������������������� !"#$%&'�%(�)'"$%*%(+�,#"�-'-.'")�#(�%(/'+"0/'&�0(&�&'*#1#(%2'&*#11'*/%#()345678)�0�9:.1%*�)'*/#"�"'9"')'(/%(+�#:"�1#*01�*#--:(%/;�<%)/#"%')=�*#11'*/=-0>'�0$0%10.1'=�0(&�):99#"/�/<'�1#*01�"')'0"*<�(''&)�#,�/<#)'90"/%*%90/%(+�%(�9'")#(01�"')'0"*<�9'"/0%(%(+�/#�"')%&'(/%01�)*<##1);)/'-)�0(&�/":/<�0(&�"'*#(*%1%0/%#(3�?@AB@C�7DBCECD@F
GH77�I5�HGIJ5K�LL4567
��������	
����������������������������������������������M���������
��
���������������������������	������������������������N�������	�����������������������������	O	������������������������������	���������������	�������
	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������
����� GH77�I5�HGIJ5K�PQ
!"#$%&'�"')#:"*')�/#�1%."0"%')�,#"�R'*#(*%1%0/%#(�S0;�%(*1:&%(+�%(,#+"09<%*)=�T##>�"'$%'U)=�'/*34567V#--'-#"0/'=�*'1'."0/'=�9"#+"0-=�0(&�*#(&:*/�9"#+"0-)�9'"/0%(%(+/#�/":/<�0(&�"'*#(*%1%0/%#(=�.#/<�#(�/<'�W0/%#(01�S0;�#,�R'*#(*%1%0/%#(0(&�/<"#:+<#:/�/<'�;'0"3?@AB@C�7DBCECD@F 4567



��
��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������	�������������������������������������
��
������������������	�������������������	����������������������������������������������� !"�#�$#%&'(#)�*(+&,-('."�/('0)-+,-�1�2#(,.#,-�!))&#(3-�4$*/2!5*("%&%.%&'(#)�6-78-9:�;9'7'%-�%<-�#3%&=&%&-"�'>�$*/2!?"�@-";-3%>.)A-97&(')',B�C)#%>'97�C9'D-3%EFGHIJ<-(�;9'=&+&(,�(-03'7-9�3'))-3%&'("�#(+�9-"'.93-":�-(".9-*(+&,-('."�7#%-9&#)"�#9-�;#9%�'>�%<'"-�9-"'.93-"�'9�39'""�3#%#)',-+�&(#�0#B�%<#%�0&))�8-�-#"&)B�>'.(+�8B�(-03'7-9"EKLMNLO�IPNOQOPLR
STII�UG�TSUVGW�XYFGHI



������������	
�����������������������
	���������

�������������������������������
	�����������
�������������������
�
����������������
	�������������������� ���!�����
	�������"
	�������#��
���������������

�����
	�������$�%��������&�'!�������'�����(����
���������������
	�������"
��)�
*��(����������
	�������
+��,-,,�����+�'��������������������������.��#���/��������������
��#���������
��� ���	��
'���#����(�������'�&�	��	
�����!�����������0�	�
�
����������1�%�(���	�
1����������������������'�	�1����������0�'������������'���������,-,2%�34564789

�% %�����2,:;��������'���������� ���<��=";�><?��2?>@2-<:!!!%���
%	�ABCBDEFGHI�HJ�KIFEDGH�LMNOGP�QGNDEDGBRS�TUTVS�W



5b.06.01

















��������	
����	�����	�����������	����	� ����	���	���������
�������������� !����"���#$�"����%��&��'��(�)��"*+��,�'�����"-��#$���.��"�#$�'���%��/�#&����012��3�456743�89�:�;��*��$�<��� �=�2�:((��+��� ��

>?@AB?�CDAE

FGH�IJ�KLMN�GNLONPQ�RSNTPQU#�8���V�.

WX�YZ[Y\[]̂�_̀YYabc�̀ZZ�dee\[afg�eh�Ye]c[]i[]̂j�Xei�k̂haa�ce�cla�ifa�em�Yee\[afjf[n[Zkh�chkY\[]̂�k]o�fcehk̂a�caYl]eZê[afj�k]o�[]mehnkc[e]�kpeic�Xeih�oaq[Yace�a]lk]Ya�Xeih�q[ar[]̂j�Z[fca][]̂�k]o�ifah�asbah[a]Yaj�bahfe]kZ[ta�Ye]ca]cjbahfe]kZ[ta�naffk̂af�mhen�uvwxf�fbe]fehfj�bheq[oa�feY[kZ�nao[k�makcihafjk]o�k]kZXta�uvwxf�chkmm[Yy�zl[f�[]mehnkc[e]�[f�flkhao�r[cl�feY[kZ�nao[kjfbe]fehfl[bj�k]kZXc[Yfj�k]o�eclah�qa]oehf�eh�fahq[Ya�bheq[oahfy�{ei�nkXYifcen[ta�rl[Yl�Yee\[af�Xei�kYYabc�[]�|dee\[a�}acc[]̂fy| ~��������������������������~������

5b.07.01



��������	
�������	�������	����	����	��������	��������������
�����
�����������������	����������	�����������
��	���	����  �!����"�!������������� ��������	�����!��������	!������	��!����������#��!$%�&$���	�!���"�''��!������!����!����������������	��
�������������"��!�#��!$%�&�(!����	�	!���!������!"�!� �������"
�����	������	�	�&�����!��	����
�����"������
���������!����	!����(	!��	�!�������	��!�������!�����������������	�!
��	������	�	� �!!��	���	���	������!��!��!��	������!�&�����
��������!��������������!��� ��� !���	�#��!$%���	�����	��	����������
����!��	��)����!�����!��
��	��� ��!�������!
�����	������*���!��	���+ ���	����	� !���� �����	�������,����!���������������
�,��	���!������ �!���!������	!�������	��
�����	����!!�	�!�+!��	����	��&����!��	����
����"�!����������,��	��!�����
�	�&-(�!��	���������"����!��
��!��	��	���!��	� ��	!�-����	���
�&�-�����!��	����
����	����"��&�(����"��������!���!�����!���&�.�!���!�!��������!������!��������������� �	�	�%�	�������.�+&��	�����	���������������!����� !��!���� �	��"�
&-���	��������	�����!�%��	�!�	�/	������!
�������������0�����	��� �!������	���	���	�����	�0���	�����&�.�������������	!�����
��	!��!�����������!�����	���"�����!� ��	������������!�	����������	����!!�	�������������!��!�� �����&����������������	�������������	!����� �!��������������!��	�����������	�����"�����������!��!�&1����!������!��� ���
���������	�����"��	��!��
�	���	��(��
�!���������$%��2��� ����������!��#��!$%��!��!�������������������	��
��	��������
��	�����"���!��!����	����� �"���"�������!�����"���	���� �
����&���� ��!���������!������!��������������!������	���������������!����!�!�!�+!����!!�	�"
�!����(��
�!��������������	���!%��	�!�	�����!�����3�	������%������	��3�"&���	�����!��������!����������	��!����������1 �	�(��!����� �	
�"���	��$%��2��	��!�����(�!���������������#��!$%��!��!��� �"�����������&�4���!���������	����� �� ������	��!������������������������!���	����	!���!�	����!��!���!��	����
�����"��	�������!!�	���� �����	!��!�����!���5�����!����!��!�	�!�!�����	�������������������������������	����!��	&67�89:8;:<=�>?88@AB�?99�CDD;:@EF�DG�8D<B:<H:<=I�7DH�J=G@@�BD�BK@�HE@�DL�8DD;:@EIE:M:9JG�BGJ8;:<=�J<N�EBDGJ=@�B@8K<D9D=:@EI�J<N�:<LDGMJB:D<�JODHB�7DHG�N@P:8@BD�@<KJ<8@�7DHG�P:@Q:<=I�9:EB@<:<=�J<N�HE@G�@RA@G:@<8@I�A@GED<J9:S@�8D<B@<BIA@GED<J9:S@�M@EEJ=@E�LGDM�TUVWE�EAD<EDGEI�AGDP:N@�ED8:J9�M@N:J�L@JBHG@EIJ<N�J<J97S@�TUVWE�BGJLL:8X�YK:E�:<LDGMJB:D<�:E�EKJG@N�Q:BK�ED8:J9�M@N:JIEAD<EDGEK:AI�J<J97B:8EI�J<N�DBK@G�P@<NDGE�DG�E@GP:8@�AGDP:N@GEX�ZDH�MJ78HEBDM:S@�QK:8K�8DD;:@E�7DH�J88@AB�:<�[CDD;:@�\@BB:<=EX[



���������	
�����������������	������������������������	�������	����������������������	���� �!��	�������������������������������������	����	���	�����	�������� �"�������	������#�$%�����������������	���������������$"���	���	�� �����������������
����������	�����	���	������	�����������	��	�������������������������	� �&����������'���������	�������������������	���	�������	��	���	���	�� �(�����	�������������������������������	���
������ 
)����	������������������������������������������*���������������	�	�� �!���	���+������������������,�%��������������������	�����	������	���������������������������������,�!��������������������������	�����������,�%�	�������������������	������������������	���	�����������������-�����������'���������������'�������	�������������������	�������-��	�������	�������,&�������.	�����������������/01�23456378��	��������������	����"������������9��	������	� "�!���	�������	�����	������������
�������	���	������	���'�������	������������������	������ �"�������	�������	�����	������������	�	������	����	����������������������	����������	��������������	������"�.	����������� �"�����������	�������	����������������������	������������	�������� ���	�����������	����������	���������������������������������� ":;<=>;�?@�ABC�D=EBFGC�����������	���������������������	����	
����������������������������������	�� �!������������������	���� �!���	������H�����' �(����������$����	�����������	��������������	����	����������������������	������������	������	�
	�������� 
IJ�KLMKNMOP�QRKKSTU�RLL�VWWNMSXY�WZ�KWOUMO[MOP\�JW[�]PZSS�UW�ÛS�[XS�W_�KWWNMSX\XM̀ML]Z�UZ]KNMOP�]Oa�XUWZ]PS�USK̂OWLWPMSX\�]Oa�MO_WZ̀]UMWO�]bW[U�JW[Z�aScMKSUW�SÔ]OKS�JW[Z�cMSdMOP\�LMXUSOMOP�]Oa�[XSZ�SeTSZMSOKS\�TSZXWO]LMfS�KWOUSOU\TSZXWO]LMfS�̀SXX]PSX�_ZẀ �ghijX�XTWOXWZX\�TZWcMaS�XWKM]L�̀SaM]�_S]U[ZSX\]Oa�]O]LJfS�ghijX�UZ]__MKk�l̂MX�MO_WZ̀]UMWO�MX�X̂]ZSa�dMÛ�XWKM]L�̀SaM]\XTWOXWZX̂MT\�]O]LJUMKX\�]Oa�WÛSZ�cSOaWZX�WZ�XSZcMKS�TZWcMaSZXk�mW[�̀]JK[XUẀ MfS�d̂ MK̂�KWWNMSX�JW[�]KKSTU�MO�nVWWNMS�oSUUMOPXkn



�������������������	���
������	�������	������������������������������������������������������������������������	��	����	�����������������	��������������	�������������	����	������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������
�����	���������	������������������� 	�!���"��#	�����	������������ #��$
��	��	������	���������	�������������������������������	��	������������
���%������������������������������	�����������������������������������	��
&��'�������(�����	�������������	���
�!��������	�� #�)���
�������	����������"��� #�����	����	������������	�����������*�����%��+����	����������������������	����������*������������������	�������	������	������,�

������	���������������������	���������	��%���,��������������	���
�*������������	��������������-��������������������������+�����������������	��������	��*��	�������
�*����������,���	��������������
*������	������������	������������������
�!������������������,�������./������-������	������	��	������������������������	�����������������������������0���������1�	�+������
�!	�������	���	��������������������������������������������	���������
2,�	����������������	�����������������	�������������	����������������	������������	��������������������������������������%������	�����������������	����
34567485�96:�;<==><?@4A<74B8�CD�EF:?G76485HI�JKLJMLNO�PQJJRST�QKK�UVVMLRWX�VY�JVNTLNZLNO[�IVZ�\OYRR�TV�T]R�ZWR�V̂�JVVMLRW[WL_LK\Y�TY\JMLNO�\Ǹ�WTVY\OR�TRJ]NVKVOLRW[�\Ǹ�LN̂VY_\TLVN�\aVZT�IVZY�̀RbLJRTV�RN]\NJR�IVZY�bLRcLNO[�KLWTRNLNO�\Ǹ�ZWRY�RdSRYLRNJR[�SRYWVN\KLeR�JVNTRNT[SRYWVN\KLeR�_RWW\ORW�̂YV_�fghiW�WSVNWVYW[�SYVbL̀R�WVJL\K�_R̀L\�̂R\TZYRW[\Ǹ�\N\KIeR�fghiW�TY\̂̂LJj�k]LW�LN̂VY_\TLVN�LW�W]\YR̀�cLT]�WVJL\K�_R̀L\[WSVNWVYW]LS[�\N\KITLJW[�\Ǹ�VT]RY�bRǸVYW�VY�WRYbLJR�SYVbL̀RYWj�lVZ�_\IJZWTV_LeR�c]LJ]�JVVMLRW�IVZ�\JJRST�LN�mUVVMLR�nRTTLNOWjm



�����������	�������
���	������������������������
�	����������	������	����������������	�
������������	�	��	�����������	�����	��������������	��������������������	���������
���	����	������ �������	�	����	�����	������������
��������������	����������	���	�
�	�����	�������	��	����	�������	������	��������!������	���	�����������"����������	�
�	�������������	����	���������	������	�������������������������#��	������	��	
������������������	�	�����	�����$���	�����������
���������������������"�������������������	�	��������	����%"�����������������%������
���	�	����&����	�����		�	��'��
� ���		��	������	����	�
�������������(��	��	�����		���	����	��������������(������
��%�����&����	�����
���	���������	������������������)�*����'�������	������	����������
�&�����	������+	� (���	
	�������		�	����(�%�����	��������������	����	����,������	����	�����	�����������
�������	�	�������������
��	���	����	����������"�����������������+��
����	����	�	���	�-�������������		����.�������	�������	���		�����	��	%�	�	��	�	�����	���������	�	��	%�	��	�������
	������	&	������	�����	��
����������	������	�	����	�����	/��������	������	��	�����/�����	�
���������������������	�
'������������������������/�	�	��������������/�����	�	��	�����	�����	�����	��
	�����	��
��	��������.���������
�����	����!�������������
���	���	%�	��	
��	�		��	������������
�����������	����������������0���������������%���		��������	��	�������12�34536578�9:33;<=�:44�>??65;@A�?B�3?7=57C578D�2?C�E8B;;�=?�=F;�C@;�?G�3??65;@D@5H54EB�=BE36578�E7I�@=?BE8;�=;3F7?4?85;@D�E7I�57G?BHE=5?7�EJ?C=�2?CB�I;K53;=?�;7FE73;�2?CB�K5;L578D�45@=;7578�E7I�C@;B�;M<;B5;73;D�<;B@?7E45N;�3?7=;7=D<;B@?7E45N;�H;@@E8;@�GB?H�OPQR@�@<?7@?B@D�<B?K5I;�@?35E4�H;I5E�G;E=CB;@DE7I�E7E42N;�OPQR@�=BEGG53S�TF5@�57G?BHE=5?7�5@�@FEB;I�L5=F�@?35E4�H;I5ED@<?7@?B@F5<D�E7E42=53@D�E7I�?=F;B�K;7I?B@�?B�@;BK53;�<B?K5I;B@S�U?C�HE23C@=?H5N;�LF53F�3??65;@�2?C�E33;<=�57�V>??65;�W;==578@SV



���������	�
�����	���
��
��������
�
������������������
���������
��	����������	�
�	����
����
����	������	
��
��
���������������������
����
����
����������
���
����������������������
������
����������������	���	����
���������� ����
����������������	����
���	�����
��	��������������������������
�������
�������
�������������������
������������� �������
��	�������������
��
�����������
��������
���������
����������!�����������	�������������
���
���
������������������
�������	�������
��
���
���	�
�����������"�����������!��������#���
�
������������$��������������������������
����!�����������	�����
�����
������������������!�����������	��� ���
������"���%&'��
��������
�������	����
���������
��
�����
�
���������������
�������
����������������������������(���������������
�����
���������
��������'��������
���
���������)��
��	�������	�������#��
�������������������������*(������
����������	���	���������������
����������������������

���*�'���������*!������������������
�������������	������������������
�����������
����������
��	�������
�
����+	���������������������������������������������
	����������"���%&'��
�������*'������
�,�		�����!��������������
���
��+ ���������������!��������������������
���������	��������������
��
��������������������������
��"���%&'�����������
����������
���	��������-
���"��������������

����.��	����������������������������������
�
����������+	�������������������
�������������������
�������
���
��������'������	��
����������
����������
�
������������������������������
����
��	��* �	
������������������������
���
����������������	���*����������* ����	���
����	��
����	�������������	���
������������������*/0�12314356�78119:;�822�<==439>?�=@�1=5;35A356B�0=A�C6@99�;=�;D9�A>9�=E�1==439>B>3F32C@�;@C14356�C5G�>;=@C69�;91D5=2=639>B�C5G�35E=@FC;3=5�CH=A;�0=A@�G9I319;=�95DC519�0=A@�I39J356B�23>;95356�C5G�A>9@�9K:9@39519B�:9@>=5C23L9�1=5;95;B:9@>=5C23L9�F9>>C69>�E@=F�MNOP>�>:=5>=@>B�:@=I3G9�>=13C2�F9G3C�E9C;A@9>BC5G�C5C20L9�MNOP>�;@CEE31Q�RD3>�35E=@FC;3=5�3>�>DC@9G�J3;D�>=13C2�F9G3CB>:=5>=@>D3:B�C5C20;31>B�C5G�=;D9@�I95G=@>�=@�>9@I319�:@=I3G9@>Q�S=A�FC01A>;=F3L9�JD31D�1==439>�0=A�C119:;�35�T<==439�U9;;356>QT



���������	
�����������
������������
����������������� �!���!"#!����#� "�$�%�!�&�'�(�#�)���*�#�+���$,���(�#����-�.#&/!&����/!&���0����-�.#&-&�')�����".1���+� '��"� �"'#���!��%234����#(���5�6���"� �2#&*".��2�+&.�$%23�("����"#�����#��"(��"� ��("&+�"  #�����&!�����#�%23��!"!&��$�,���7�!"&+�$89:8;<=:>?@AB�CD@AEBF�GA@H�IJK

LM�NOP�QRM�STUVM�UNWXP�YOTTXZX[�\RUV�MU]M[�WQX�X̂YRWX_XVW�̀�UVa�YTXUP�aX_UVa�̀�NOP�QRMVXb�USS�QUM�YOVcRVYXa�QR_�WQUW�QX�MQOdTa�YOVYXVWPUWX�OV�_UeRVZ�RW�U�fXWWXP[�_OPXUYYdPUWX�SPOadYWg�hiN�]OdjPX�U�WXUYQXP�OP�UV�XadYUWOP[�OdP�WXU_�̀�bQRYQ�PRZQW�VOb�RMkdMW�_X�UVa�_]�fXMW�NPRXVa�NPO_�YOTTXZX[�bQO�kdMW�kORVXa�]XMWXPaU]�̀�bX�bOdTa�TOcX�WOWUTe�WO�]Od[h�\RUV�MU]MglO�RN�]Od�XVYOdVWXP�MO_X�WX̂W�WQUW�]Od�MdMSXYW�_U]�fX�bPRWWXV�f]�U�_UYQRVX[�_U]fXPdV�RW�WQPOdZQ�\RUVjM�VXb�USSm�nOd�YUV�NRVa�RW�UW�op\qXPOg_Xgrstuvwxy�zvu{|}~����������������������������������������������������������������������������������D��D �E

� �����¡����¢£������£���¤��¡���¥��������������¦� ���������������������§����¡���¦������������¡����������������������������¦�������§��������������� ������̈�������������� ����̈������¦���������������������©��������¦����������ª���������¦���������ª�����������§����«¬®����������¦����̈�����������������§�������¦�������� ª��«¬®�����§§����̄������§������������������������������������¦�����������¦����� ����¦�����������̈�������������̈�������̈�������°����� �������ª�����������¡���� �������������±¤��¡���²��������±



���������	
���
�����
��	
��
���
������

�����������
��
�����
 ��
��
���
��!�������
������	"#
$%&$'&()
*+$$,-.
+%%
/00'&,12
03
$0(.&(4&()5
#04
6)3,,
.0
.7,
41,
08
$00'&,151&9&%63
.36$'&()
6(:
1.036),
.,$7(0%0)&,15
6(:
&(80396.&0(
6;04.
#043
:,<&$,.0
,(76($,
#043
<&,=&()5
%&1.,(&()
6(:
41,3
,>-,3&,($,5
-,310(6%&?,
$0(.,(.5-,310(6%&?,
9,116),1
8309
@ABC1
1-0(10315
-30<&:,
10$&6%
9,:&6
8,6.43,156(:
6(6%#?,
@ABC1
.3688&$D
E7&1
&(80396.&0(
&1
1763,:
=&.7
10$&6%
9,:&651-0(10317&-5
6(6%#.&$15
6(:
0.7,3
<,(:031
03
1,3<&$,
-30<&:,31D
F04
96#$41.09&?,
=7&$7
$00'&,1
#04
6$$,-.
&(
G/00'&,
H,..&()1DG



����������	
	�������
��
��	
����	�	�
�������

����������	
������
��
��	
����	�	�
���������
������� 
!"��#$%
"��
&''��#()
'*
�'�%��+�� ,
�'+
- *##
%'
%.#
+(#
'/
�''��#(,(�0��-*
%*-���� 
-�1
(%'*- #
%#�.�'�' �#(,
-�1
��/'*0-%�'�
-2'+%
�'+*
1#3��#%'
#�.-��#
�'+*
3�#4�� ,
��(%#��� 
-�1
+(#*
#5$#*�#��#,
$#*('�-��6#
�'�%#�%,$#*('�-��6#
0#((- #(
/*'0
789:(
($'�('*(,
$*'3�1#
('��-�
0#1�-
/#-%+*#(,-�1
-�-��6#
789:(
%*-//��;
<.�(
��/'*0-%�'�
�(
(.-*#1
4�%.
('��-�
0#1�-,($'�('*(.�$,
-�-��%��(,
-�1
'%.#*
3#�1'*(
'*
(#*3��#
$*'3�1#*(;
='+
0-��+(%'0�6#
4.��.
�''��#(
�'+
-��#$%
��
>&''��#
?#%%�� (;>



����������		
�������	�����
�	�������������������������������

��������������� � ���
�������
  �!���"#$���" $ �����
#����$ %&�'()'*)+,�-.''/01�.((�233*)/45�36�'3+1)+7)+,8�&37�9,6//�13�1:/�74/�3;�'33*)/484)<)(96�169'*)+,�9+=�41369,/�1/':+3(3,)/48�9+=�)+;36<91)3+�9>371�&376�=/?)'/13�/+:9+'/�&376�?)/@)+,8�()41/+)+,�9+=�74/6�/A0/6)/+'/8�0/643+9()B/�'3+1/+180/643+9()B/�</449,/4�;63<�CDEF4�403+43648�063?)=/�43')9(�</=)9�;/9176/489+=�9+9(&B/�CDEF4�169;;)'G�H:)4�)+;36<91)3+�)4�4:96/=�@)1:�43')9(�</=)98403+4364:)08�9+9(&1)'48�9+=�31:/6�?/+=364�36�4/6?)'/�063?)=/64G�I37�<9&'7413<)B/�@:)':�'33*)/4�&37�9''/01�)+�J233*)/�K/11)+,4GJ



���������	�
�����
��������������������������� ���!����"�#��$�%��$�#������&�'(��������)���!&��������'�%%�"���

*+�,-.,/.01�23,,456�3--�788/.49:�8;�,806.0<.01=�+8<�>1;44�68�6?4�<94�8@�,88/.49=9.A.->;�6;>,/.01�>0B�968;>14�64,?08-81.49=�>0B�.0@8;A>6.80�>C8<6�+8<;�B4D.,468�40?>0,4�+8<;�D.4E.01=�-.9640.01�>0B�<94;�4F54;.40,4=�54;980>-.G4�,806406=54;980>-.G4�A499>149�@;8A�HIJK9�958098;9=�5;8D.B4�98,.>-�A4B.>�@4>6<;49=>0B�>0>-+G4�HIJK9�6;>@@.,L�M?.9�.0@8;A>6.80�.9�9?>;4B�E.6?�98,.>-�A4B.>=958098;9?.5=�>0>-+6.,9=�>0B�86?4;�D40B8;9�8;�94;D.,4�5;8D.B4;9L�N8<�A>+,<968A.G4�E?.,?�,88/.49�+8<�>,,456�.0�O788/.4�P466.019LO



����������	
�	���������
���
�������������	����
��	���	����������������� �!�����!�����
��"# �$��	�%�������
��
�������	�����������
�
�����
��
�&��������������

��"
'(�)*+),+-.�/0))123�0**�455,+167�58�)5-3+-9+-.:�(59�;.811�35�3<1�961�5=�)55,+16:6+>+*;8�38;),+-.�;-?�6358;.1�31)<-5*5.+16:�;-?�+-=58>;3+5-�;@593�(598�?1A+)135�1-<;-)1�(598�A+1B+-.:�*+631-+-.�;-?�9618�1C218+1-)1:�21865-;*+D1�)5-31-3:21865-;*+D1�>166;.16�=85>�EFGH6�625-6586:�285A+?1�65)+;*�>1?+;�=1;39816:;-?�;-;*(D1�EFGH6�38;==+)I�J<+6�+-=58>;3+5-�+6�6<;81?�B+3<�65)+;*�>1?+;:625-6586<+2:�;-;*(3+)6:�;-?�53<18�A1-?586�58�618A+)1�285A+?186I�K59�>;()9635>+D1�B<+)<�)55,+16�(59�;))123�+-�L455,+1�M133+-.6IL



������������	
�����
�������������������������������������
������
��
��
�����
������������������� 
���������
���
	��������������������!��������	!�� ����� �������	

"#��#$%&�

� ���'�� ����(��!�����
��)������������*+�,-.,/.01�23,,456�3--�788/.49:�8;�,806.0<.01=�+8<�>1;44�68�6?4�<94�8@�,88/.49=9.A.->;�6;>,/.01�>0B�968;>14�64,?08-81.49=�>0B�.0@8;A>6.80�>C8<6�+8<;�B4D.,468�40?>0,4�+8<;�D.4E.01=�-.9640.01�>0B�<94;�4F54;.40,4=�54;980>-.G4�,806406=54;980>-.G4�A499>149�@;8A�HIJK9�958098;9=�5;8D.B4�98,.>-�A4B.>�@4>6<;49=>0B�>0>-+G4�HIJK9�6;>@@.,L�M?.9�.0@8;A>6.80�.9�9?>;4B�E.6?�98,.>-�A4B.>=958098;9?.5=�>0>-+6.,9=�>0B�86?4;�D40B8;9�8;�94;D.,4�5;8D.B4;9L�N8<�A>+,<968A.G4�E?.,?�,88/.49�+8<�>,,456�.0�O788/.4�P466.019LO



��������	
�������
�������������������������������� �!"���#$%&'''� (���"����� ���(��������"��

)*�+,-+.-/0�12++345�2,,�677.-389�7:�+7/5-/;-/0<�*7;�=0:33�57�5>3�;83�7?�+77.-38<8-@-,=:�5:=+.-/0�=/A�857:=03�53+>/7,70-38<�=/A�-/?7:@=5-7/�=B7;5�*7;:�A3C-+357�3/>=/+3�*7;:�C-3D-/0<�,-853/-/0�=/A�;83:�3E43:-3/+3<�43:87/=,-F3�+7/53/5<43:87/=,-F3�@388=038�?:7@�GHIJ8�847/87:8<�4:7C-A3�87+-=,�@3A-=�?3=5;:38<=/A�=/=,*F3�GHIJ8�5:=??-+K�L>-8�-/?7:@=5-7/�-8�8>=:3A�D-5>�87+-=,�@3A-=<847/87:8>-4<�=/=,*5-+8<�=/A�75>3:�C3/A7:8�7:�83:C-+3�4:7C-A3:8K�M7;�@=*+;857@-F3�D>-+>�+77.-38�*7;�=++345�-/�N677.-3�O355-/08KN



���������	
�����	�����������
�������
���������������
��	������	�����������
���������
�� ����������������������������	!	��	"��
���
����	#�	��������	������	��$��%��

&�'�
()�*+,*-,./�01**234�1++�566-,278�69�*6.4,.:,./;�)6:�</922�46�4=2�:72�6>�*66-,27;7,?,+<9�49<*-,./�<.@�7469</2�42*=.6+6/,27;�<.@�,.>69?<4,6.�<A6:4�)6:9�@2B,*246�2.=<.*2�)6:9�B,2C,./;�+,742.,./�<.@�:729�2D329,2.*2;�32976.<+,E2�*6.42.4;32976.<+,E2�?277</27�>96?�FGHI7�736.7697;�396B,@2�76*,<+�?2@,<�>2<4:927;<.@�<.<+)E2�FGHI7�49<>>,*J�K=,7�,.>69?<4,6.�,7�7=<92@�C,4=�76*,<+�?2@,<;736.7697=,3;�<.<+)4,*7;�<.@�64=29�B2.@697�69�729B,*2�396B,@297J�L6:�?<)*:746?,E2�C=,*=�*66-,27�)6:�<**234�,.�M566-,2�N244,./7JM



���������	
��	�����	����

	����������������������������������������	��������
��������	��	�����������������������
����������	����� !"����	!��������
���#����$���������

�%&'&()����*�+���������	�����	!��������,�$���������������� �������������������-.�/01/2134�56//789�600�:;;217<=�;>�/;3913?134@�.;?�A4>77�9;�9B7�?<7�;C�/;;217<@<1D10A>�9>A/2134�A3E�<9;>A47�97/B3;0;417<@�A3E�13C;>DA91;3�AF;?9�.;?>�E7G1/79;�73BA3/7�.;?>�G17H134@�01<973134�A3E�?<7>�7I87>173/7@�87><;3A01J7�/;39739@87><;3A01J7�D7<<A47<�C>;D�KLMN<�<8;3<;><@�8>;G1E7�<;/1A0�D7E1A�C7A9?>7<@A3E�A3A0.J7�KLMN<�9>ACC1/O�PB1<�13C;>DA91;3�1<�<BA>7E�H19B�<;/1A0�D7E1A@<8;3<;><B18@�A3A0.91/<@�A3E�;9B7>�G73E;><�;>�<7>G1/7�8>;G1E7><O�Q;?�DA./?<9;D1J7�HB1/B�/;;217<�.;?�A//789�13�R:;;217�S799134<OR



���������	
�������������������������������� ��
!"���!
�����������#���$%&'���(���������'����������)�*"+
��,�-.��.���/�.�����01������$����02� ���#�'�'�����$����2�����������'�
3�
���4"�4����))�����$����5����)'�����5��5����������5�� )��5�2.�'����5�26���789:;�<=�>;8?9@ABCDD<>9�?9@ABCD�CE<@C8;78F7�<GHDI�JKJL�G?9MN�OPQORQST�UVOOWXY�VPP�Z[[RQW\]�[̂�O[SYQS_QST̀�N[_�aT̂WW�Y[�YbW�_\W�[c�O[[RQW\̀\QdQPâ�ŶaORQST�aSe�\Y[̂aTW�YWObS[P[TQW\̀�aSe�QSc[̂daYQ[S�af[_Y�N[_̂�eWgQOWY[�WSbaSOW�N[_̂�gQWhQST̀�PQ\YWSQST�aSe�_\Ŵ�WiXŴQWSOẀ�XŴ\[SaPQjW�O[SYWSỲXŴ\[SaPQjW�dW\\aTW\�ĉ[d�klmn\�\X[S\[̂\̀�X̂[gQeW�\[OQaP�dWeQa�cWaY_̂W\̀aSe�aSaPNjW�klmn\�ŶaccQOo�pbQ\�QSc[̂daYQ[S�Q\�\bâWe�hQYb�\[OQaP�dWeQà\X[S\[̂\bQX̀�aSaPNYQO\̀�aSe�[YbŴ�gWSe[̂\�[̂�\ŴgQOW�X̂[gQeŴ\o�q[_�daNO_\Y[dQjW�hbQOb�O[[RQW\�N[_�aOOWXY�QS�rZ[[RQW�sWYYQST\or



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� ��

*++,-./012�34�56�70819109:;�9;<=2�>3�?=:;31�31�1=@3A=�833<;B�1=;=91?/�1=A=97;C�-DEFGH�IH�JKLKM�-N+O-�PGPIGE-�+Q�RNG�MDILKS�D-KTU�KTSEGV-KTULHRNEGVRGTKTU�IGNVFK+DE�VI+DR�RNG�EGP+FVL�+Q�I++,-�+T�GPMKEGW�EVSGVTX�YZ*[\]�RNGPG-

5b.08.01



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� ��


*+,+-�*-+./01�23�456�2327�8392:�;</=>?@A@>ABC�A@D�>BE@DAC>BFGH�?D>BF�ACIDJ�KL�EDBCL@�L@�@DMLND�?LLICO�ABJ�PAND�AGCL�QAEDJ�KP@DAKC�>B�J>CERCC>LBC�A?LRKKPD�@DMLNAG�LQ�?LLICSTDCDA@EP�EA@@>DJ�LRK�?H�KPD�UPA@KD@DJ�VBCK>KRKD�LQ�=>?@A@H�ABJ�VBQL@MAK>LB�W@LQDCC>LBAGC�XU>G>YZO�KPD�[\]C�G>?@A@H�ABJ>BQL@MAK>LB�ACCLE>AK>LBO�QLRBJ�KPAK�A�KP>@J�LQ�G>?@A@>ABC�PAJ�?DDB�ACIDJ�?H�MDM?D@C�LQ�KPD�YR?G>E�KL�EDBCL@�L@@DMLND�?LLICO�>BJ>EAK>BF�KPAK�CREP�>BE>JDBEDC�̂PAJ�>BE@DACDJ�C>FB>_EABKGH�>B�@DEDBK�HDA@C̀O�AEEL@J>BF�KL�U>G>Y]C�EP>DQDaDERK>NDO�b>EI�WLLGDS�cPD�MLCK�KA@FDKDJ�?LLIC�>BNLGND�DMY>@DO�@AED�ABJ�=decfg�KPDMDCShLMD�ijk�LQ�G>?@A@>ABC�CA>J�KPDH�lD@D�ELBED@BDJ�A?LRK�KPD�>BE@DACD�>B�CREP�@DmRDCKCS�VB�@DCYLBCD�KL�KPD�CR@NDH_BJ>BFC�ABJ�>BE@DACDJ�BRM?D@�LQ�@DmRDCKC�QL@�@DMLNAGO�U>G>Y�>C�>B�KPD�Y@LEDCC�LQ�RYJAK>BF�KPD�BAK>LBAG�FR>JABED�QL@G>?@A@>ABC�>B�MABAF>BF�CKLEIO�CYAEDCO�DNDBKC�ABJ�AEK>N>K>DCS



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� ��

*+,�-./01�2�*3/456�78394:./4:�;6�254<.,�=0:>?05�@3<�A3890A0?�;6�B0,3A.8�C4:D�=83AA4,E�F>.A.983G>1�H.0�I38A4,0JKA>0�L+38?43,MNNOP�QRST�UVWXTRPUVYZ[�\TTV�R]�]QT�̂NXT̂XNV]�N̂�]QT�PN_WRZZT̀�WaZ]aXT�bRXPc�dU\XRXURVP�UV�]QT�ef�QRST�̂NaV̀]QTgPTZSTP�UV�XTYaZRX�WNVhUW]�bU]Q�XUYQ]bUVY�XTR̀TXP�NSTX�\NNO�P]NWOi�jTka\ZUWRV�P]R]T�PTVR]NX�jUWO�MXR]]UV�UP�\TQUV̀R�ZRb�UV�lUPPNaXU�WXUgUVRZUPUVY�RV[\Ǹ[�bQN�gROTP�SUPaRZZ[�TmkZUWU]�gR]TXURZP�RSRUZR\ZT�R]�R�PWQNNZn�WU]UVY�\NNOP�PaWQRP�oZUPNV�MTWQ̀TZpP�YXRkQUW�VNSTZ�gTgNUX�qaV�rNgTn�RP�bTZZ�RP�WZRPPUWP�PaWQ�RP�sNVU�lNXXUPNVpP�fNVY�N̂�fNZNgNVnbQTV�RPOT̀�̂NX�TmRgkZTP�N̂�PTmaRZZ[�TmkZUWU]�gR]TXURZPc�fNgT�e]RQ�PWQNNZ�ZU\XRXUTP�VNb�XTtaUXT�kTXgUPPUNV�PZUkP�̂NX



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� ��


*+,-./+*�+0�102203�1004*�506.27/8�9:;<=>�+?.@.*A�3?7B.�C.D,1B75E/*�E/-�+?.�FE2�278?+�?E6.�+E28.+.-�-2E8�*+02G?0,2*HI.E/3?7B.�7/�+?.�JKA�+?.2.�?E*�1../�-.1E+.�E20,/-�1004*�+?E+�?E6.�?E-�BE/8,E8.�5?E/8.-A�7/5B,-7/8�+?.�2.@06EB�0F+?.�LM302-�E/-�+?.�+.2@�NO27./+EBP�F20@�Q8E+?E�R?27*+7.S*�T0720+�E/-�I7**�IE2DB.�/06.B*A�E/-�+?.�2.@06EB�0F�+?.�LM302-�E/-�2.F.2./5.*�+0�+?.�.+?/757+G�0F�@7/02�5?E2E5+.2*�7/�UE/�VB.@7/8S*�WE@.*�;0/-�/06.B*HR7B7D�E/-�9712E27.*�R0//.5+.-A�E�5?E27+G�+?E+�2.D2.*./+*�D,1B75�B712E27.*A�*E7-�B712E27E/*�E2.�E3E2.�0F�-7*5,**70/*+E47/8�DBE5.�E20,/-�0,+-E+.-�BE/8,E8.�7/�1004*A�E/-�+?7*�7*�EX.5+7/8�+?.72�Y01*�7/�-7X.2./+�3EG*HNZ0@.�0F�+?.�D,1B75�-.1E+.�7*�2.E5?7/8�B712E27E/*AP�T00B.�*E7-H�N[.S6.�?.E2-�2.D02+*�0F�2.\,.*+*�+0�2.@06.�@E+.27EB*+?E+�-.EB�37+?�2E5.�E/-�.@D72.�E/-�;27+E7/S*�50B0/7EB�?.27+E8.HPN[.S6.�.6./�?E-�E�20,/-�+E1B.�37+?�*0@.�B712E27E/*�3?0S6.�2.5.76.-�D.2*0/EB�+?2.E+*�0F�670B./5.�E20,/-�+?.72�30240/�-.50B0/7*7/8�50BB.5+70/*A�02�1EBE/57/8�+?E+�?7*+0275EB�D.2*D.5+76.�7/�+?.72�50BB.5+70/*H�TE2+�0F�0,2�Y01�7*�+0�@E7/+E7/1004�*+054�+?E+�+.BB*�+?.�3?0B.�0F�+?E+�*+02G�E/-�+0�1.�,/EF2E7-�7/�+.BB7/8�+?E+�*+02GAP�?.�E--.-H�NL0�B712E27E/�*?0,B-.6.2�1.�7/�F.E2�0F�+?.72�3.BB1.7/8�02�*EF.+G�E*�E�2.*,B+�0F�-07/8�+?.72�Y01�F02�+?.�D,1B75HP]̂_̀�ab�cd�eddfghifjklmm�nmmopq�rmnspmttmluvwxyz{|�}{~��yy�w�~v���y�|�{��{|��|{zv{~w������y|�v}�{|zv{~w��}���y���w���v�{|�|���{�v���w��{�vz{|{���v|{x���y��rtml�q��l�m���p����lmss ���r����l����q���t��m���{~w�{��{|w� ���xy}��v}�v}¡y���y���x��|v�v{w��y}�v}{���w���}��xy}�{}��¡�}�{�����y��wv�{���|�v{w��¢y|� y|{�v}¡y| ��vy}�w{{�y�|� ��£{��w{¤yy��{�|{¥���x����y��|y�{x��y�|�~{�wv�{��}����{�¤yy��{� ��}�� �������T00B.�*E7-�+?.�0+?.2�178�E2.E�3?.2.�B712E27E/*�?E-�2.5.76.-�2.\,.*+*�F02�2.@06EB*�3E*�1004*�37+?�9:;<=>�+?.@.*�025?E2E5+.2*H�U*01.B�¦,/+.2A�5?7.F�.§.5,+76.�0F�9712E27.*�R0//.5+.-A�*E7-�+?E+�3?7B.�*0@.�B712E2G�@E/E8.2*�?E6.�+0B-|̈vz�x��̈y�vx�|̈vz�x��̈y�vx� ©{| w�y¡�ª{|zvx{



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� *�

+�,-�./.0�1,2345-�6,748�,9:�;<=>54�?<@9@91�=-�A5<B�C,9,:,8�D4�3,E4�,�-B,FF�A,E<=5�2<�,-GH�I�JKL�MKNO�PKNJQ�JKLRSSROTUJVTVKQW�NJX�LKYOK�ZRSVJ[�TZVQ�MKNO�[V\KQ�OVQK�TR�QRPK�PU]ẐJKKXKX�QTN_V̀VTM�NJX�SOR[OKQQa�bZNTK\KOZNSSKJQW�TZK�cUNOXVNJ�LV̀̀�_K�TZKOKW�SOR\VXVJ[�]̀NOVTM�NJX�dKNÒKQQW�VJXKSKJXKJT�OKSROTVJ[�dORP�NORUJX�TZK�LRÒXWefgha�iVPKQ�NOK�TRU[ZW�NJX�LK�jJRL�JRT�K\KOMRJK�VQ�VJ�N�SRQVTVRJ�TR�SNM�dRO�JKLQa�kUT�NQ�LKlOK�OKNXKÔdUJXKXW�LK�OK̀M�RJTZK�RJ[RVJ[�[KJKORQVTM�Rd�TZRQK�LZR�]NJ�NmROX�VTa�iZVQ�\VTǸ�QUSSROT�PKNJQ�PV̀̀VRJQ�]NJ�]RJTVJUK�TR�OKNX�OK̀VN_̀KOKSROTVJ[�RJ�TZK�K\KJTQ�QZNSVJ[�RUO�LRÒXa�bV̀̀�MRU�VJ\KQT�VJ�TZK�cUNOXVNJ�TZVQ�MKNOnoJ̀VjK�PNJM�RTZKOQW�LK�ZN\K�JR�_V̀̀VRJNVOK�RLJKOW�PKNJVJ[�LK�]NJ�dKNÒKQQ̀M�]ZNQK�TZK�TOUTZ�NJX�OKSROT�VT�LVTZVJTK[OVTMa�epeq�LV̀̀�_K�JR�XVmKOKJTr�LK�LV̀̀�LROj�LVTZ�TONXKPNOj�XKTKOPVJNTVRJ�NJX�SNQQVRJ�TR�_OVJ[�MRU�sRUOJǸVQP

TZK�[ORUS�TZKM�ZN\K�ZNX�\KOM�dKL�OKtUKQTQ�dRO�TZK�OKPR\Ǹ�Rd�TVT̀KQW�TZKM�ZN\K�_KKJ�OK]KV\VJ[�N�̀NO[K�JUP_KO�RddOKKXRP�Rd�VJdROPNTVRJ�OKtUKQTQW�SOVPNOV̀M�dORP�PKXVN�RO[NJVQNTVRJQaiZK�OKQÙTW�QZK�QNVXW�VQ�TZNT�̀V_ONOVNJQ�NOK�ZN\VJ[�TR�TNjK�TVPK�NLNM�dORP�TZKVO�SOVPNOM�sR_�TR�NJQLKO�TZKQK�OKtUKQTQauiZKOK�VQ�JR�QU]Z�TZVJ[�NQ�]KJQROQZVS�VJ�SU_̀V]�̀V_ONOVKQWv�QNVX�wUJTKOa�ubK�XRJlT�jJRL�Rd�NJM�̀V_ONOVKQ�TZNT�ZN\KTOV[[KO�LNOJVJ[QavxU]M�kNJjQW�OKNXVJ[�XK\K̀RSPKJT�PNJN[KO�NT�xV_ONOVKQ�oJ̀VPVTKXW�N�]ZNOVTM�TZNT�PNJN[KQ�̀V_ONOVKQ�VJ�yK\RJ�NJXiRO_NMW�QNVXz�ubK�XRJlT�]KJQROW�NJX�LKlOK�S̀KNQKX�TR�ZN\K�TZNT�OR̀K�LVTZVJ�QR]VKTM�NQ�N�ZU_�Rd�TOUQTKX�VJdROPNTVRJaubKlOK�JRT�[KTTVJ[�TZK�]RPS̀NVJTQ�_UT�LK�NOK�NLNOK�Rd�TZRQK�LVXKO�]RJ\KOQNTVRJQW�NJX�VJXKKXW�TZKM�XR�QRPKTVPKQ]ORS�US�VJ�TZK�̀V_ONOMWv�QZK�NXXKXa�ubKlOK�OKǸ̀M�QUSSROTV\K�Rd�K\KOMRJKlQ�OV[ZTQW�OK[NOX̀KQQ�Rd�_N]j[ORUJXW�̀VdKQTM̀KW[KJXKO�RO�N[K�{�LK�QKK�VT�NQ�RUO�dUJXNPKJTǸ�sR_�TR�PNjK�RUO�̀V_ONOVKQ�NQ�LNOP�NJX�LK̀]RPVJ[�dRO�NQ�PNJM�SKRS̀K�NQSRQQV_̀Kav|V̀VSlQ�USXNTKX�[UVXNJ]K�dRO�̀V_ONOVNJQ�RJ�ZRL�TR�XKǸ�LVTZ�OKtUKQTQ�dRO�TZK�OKPR\Ǹ�Rd�_RRjQ�VQ�XUK�TR�_K�OK̀KNQKXSU_̀V]̀M�VJ�}NMa�ubK�LNJT�TR�[KT�SNQT�TZVQ�SKOVRX�Rd�]ÙTUOK�LNO�NJX�SR̀VTV]Q�NJX�OKǸ̀M�dR]UQ�RJ�TZK�sR_�VJ�ZNJXWv�QNVX~RR̀Ka�u�T�]RJTVJUKQ�TR�_K�TOUK�TZNT�VT�sUQT�TNjKQ�N�QSNOj�VJ�N�]ZV̀XOKJlQ�_RRj�TR�VJQSVOK�N�MRUJ[�SKOQRJ�TR�[R�RJ�NJX�XRQRPKTZVJ[�_OV̀̀VNJTW�NJX�TZNTlQ�LZNT�LK�LNJT�TR�dR]UQ�RJ�XRVJ[av



�����������	�
��� ��������������������������������������������� �������������������� �����!�"�����!����#$������

���%�	��&&&'���($������'����������������%����������)��)$�)����������)�����)��)������)��)���� �)�����)��������)�� ���� *�


+,-+./�-01-2/�3455�3467�86775489-0�64�:609+98-0�9;+543545;85<�=6�6;5�5>9+/�6?4�5>9+64�64�>9@54+/�6?4�-++5;+96;�34671,-+./�76/+�97:64+-;+<�A9+,�26?4�/?::64+B�15.00�86;+9;?5�+6�C55:�D?-4>9-;�E6?4;-09/7�6:5;�-;>�3455�364�5@5426;5�+6�45-><�A,5;�-885//�+69;3647-+96;�9/�7->5�5F?-0B�G45-+54�;?7H54/�63�:56:05�8-;�?;>54/+-;>�G06H-0�5@5;+/�-;>�+,594�97:-8+�6;�:56:05-;>�8677?;9+95/<�I6G5+,54B�15�8-;�>57-;>�H5++54�3467�+,5�:61543?0�-;>�JG,+�364�>57684-82<A,5+,54�26?�G9@5�-�09++05�64�-�06+B�26?4�3?;>9;G�9/�@9+-0�9;�:61549;G�6?4�45:64+9;G�364�25-4/�+6�8675<�KL�MNO�PQRSTUVQWV�WOTTNXY�OW�NR�Q�ZNRY[UM�\QW]W�LXNZ�̂OWY�_̀ abc�KY�YQdVW�UVWW�Y[QR�Q�Z]ROYV�YN�WVY�OTS�QRe�MNO�PQR�XVWYQWWOXVe�Y[QY�MNOfXV�ZQd]Rg�Q�\]g�]ZTQPY�VhVXM�W]RgUV�ZNRY[�]R�WOTTNXY�NL�NTVRS�]ReVTVReVRY�̂NOXRQU]WZc�i[QRdMNOc
jklmnlop qprnls�rp�nl�tolpunlvwp xklmywz {llo|wj{}~��p��rklmy j{}���p��rklmy �myp�



5b.09.01







Unless you’re in a rush to read Prince Harry’s memoir, “Spare,” (there are currently 1,914
holds on the book), the Toronto Public Library has something for everyone.

During a time of severe sticker shock, it is a sticker free sanctuary: a free source of enter-
tainment, a free place to unwind, a free place to job hunt online, and if you don’t mind let-
ting your kid wreak havoc in the DVD section, a free source of child care. (It’s even free
when you break the rules; the library permanently removed late fees last year).
My local branch in Southwest Scarborough was and remains a Godsend. When my now
two-year-old daughter was born at the height of the pandemic, I thought my fate was
sealed: that for the next five years I’d be reading the same 20 picture books I owned on
repeat — eight of them didactic board books about social justice gifted to us by well mean-
ing friends (a note to heterosexuals buying gifts for queer couples expecting a baby: the
gays — and their offspring — enjoy “Goodnight Moon” just like you do).
But then I had an epiphany that changed my life forever: I remembered that the public lib-
rary existed and within its realm the ability to put practically any book I could ever want to
read on hold for pickup at my local branch.
As such, our house is now home to a never-ending rotation of dozens of library picture
books on all manner of subjects from thunderstorms to matzoh-eatingmice. And the lib-
rary itself is a second home to my daughter when it’s raining or when we have an hour to
kill before dinnertime. Aside from garbage collection, and transit, the public library is the
city service my family relies on most in our daily lives.
All of which is to say, I’m thrilled that at least two of the mayoral candidates in Toronto’s
June byelection have announced plans to increase services at city libraries.
If he wins, Toronto mayoral candidate Josh Matlow has promised to “increase access to the
Toronto Public Library and its vital services by opening all 100 branches on Sundays.
The same goes for candidate Mitzie Hunter, who has vouched to extend library service on
Sundays and enhance library programs for youth.
Currently, only some libraries operate on Sundays for a handful of hours in the afternoon.
This is a travesty. As anyone who has visited a Toronto library can tell you, it isn’t just a
place to sign out books. It’s an internet café for seniors, a story circle for toddlers, a study
space for teens, an English language school for newcomers, and a venue for community

Facilities are a free source of entertainment or a place for users of all ages to
unwind

!"#$%&'(% () *'+,$,- .(/,& '& 0,1$2 #(*'3-

Toronto Star · 29 Apr 2023 · IN7 · EMMA TEITEL EMMA TEITEL IS A TORONTO-BASED COLUMNIST AND MEMBER
OF THE STAR'S EDITORIAL BOARD. @EMMAROSETEITEL

Expansion of library hours is great policy https://www.pressreader.com/canada/toronto-star/20230429/28271193...

1 of 2 2023-04-30, 10:06 a.m.

5b.10.01



programming all wrapped into one. According to the library itself, in 2021, nearly 1.2 mil-
lion people were registered cardholders, and 10 million holds were placed at all 100
branches and on the website.
Data collected prior to last year’s municipal election revealed that cost of living and infla-
tion was a top-of-mind issue for Toronto voters.
Even with those hyped up strong mayor powers, Toronto’s new mayor will not be able to
lower the price of lettuce or single-handedly solve the housing crisis. But he or she should
be able to improve the services we rely on almost everyday. Surely increased funding to a
free service would be a huge benefit to Torontonians — those with kids in particular —
struggling financially right now. Amid endless talks about the root causes of crime, surely
increased funding to an already wellestablished community safety net would be a wise
move.
My hope is that every mayoral candidate makes a pledge to increase library funding and
access (at the very least they should donate a couple copies of Prince Harry’s “Spare” to
their local branch).
My fear, however, is that in their quest to pursue shiny new things (a new science centre at
Ontario Place for example) candidates will fail to improve on the vital services we already
have.
As anyone who has visited a Toronto library can tell you, it isn’t just a place to sign out
books. It’s an internet café for seniors, a story circle for toddlers, a study space for teens,
an English language school for newcomers, and a venue for community programming all
wrapped into one

Expansion of library hours is great policy https://www.pressreader.com/canada/toronto-star/20230429/28271193...

2 of 2 2023-04-30, 10:06 a.m.



5 C . 0 1 . 0 1  

APR 2023
CEO
REPORT



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

1 

 

 

 

 

COMMITMENT TO UNLEARNING & DECOLONIZATION 

Beyond Land Acknowledgements 
Over the course of nine weeks throughout March and April, three members of Library staff - 

Manager of Engagement & Community Development, Collection Services Librarian, and Special 

Collections Librarian - participated in an online micro-credential course entitled "Beyond GLAM 

Land Acknowledgments: Activating Decolonization and Indigenization in Galleries, Libraries, 

Archives, and Museums" offered by the School of Continuing Studies at OCAD University. This 

course focused on: learning from Indigenous experts about using appropriate terminologies, 

how to decolonize texts and labels, developing strategies to decolonize institutional practices, 

and developing a better understanding of the implications of the Truth & Reconciliation 

Commission of Canada and United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples on 

databases, research, and collections. Moving forward, staff will work towards incorporating the 

principles of decolonization and indigenization into the Library's practices, programming, and 

physical spaces to reflect our commitment to reconciliation with Canada's Indigenous peoples. 

 

CELEBRATE BLACK EXCELLENCE 

Lewis.theArtist and UPlift Black 
Collaborating with local non-profit UPlift Black, we have 

dedicated one of our art display walls in the Lakeshore 

branch to celebrate local Black artists. Using a graffiti 

style mixed with the technology of the HackLAB 

Lewis.theArtist created a dynamic backdrop around the 

theme “Black Joy is Black Excellence”. In the coming 

months, art by local Black artists and members of UPlift 

Black’s Black Artist Collective will be displayed in the 

Library. 

 

Speak UP for diversity & inclusion 
 

https://www.lewistheartist.com/


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

2 

 

LIBRARY ON THE LOOSE: OUTREACH 

Silver Birch Battle of the Books 
We were thrilled to host the Silver Birch Battle of the Books in person again for the first time 

since 2019. The event involved students in grades 3 to 6 reading a selection of five to twenty 

books from the Forest of Reading. For the Battle of the Books, teams of students competed to 

answer questions about the content, authors, and titles of the Silver Birch books using the 

Kahoot! Interactive platform. Kempentfelt Bay School participated with seven students, two 

teachers, and several family members who cheered on their teams.  

Running the Kahoot! on the 

stage screen allowed the 

audience to see how the 

teams were doing and react 

with an "ohh" or "ahh" as the 

standings changed 

throughout the battle. At the 

end of the event, the 

students, teachers, and 

parents expressed gratitude 

and said they had a lot of 

fun. 

 

Open UP opportunities to strengthen 

connection & engagement with our community 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

3 

Visiting Child Care Centres 

April was a busy month for our Library on the Loose outreach programming, which involved 

visits to several local child care centres in Innisfil. Our children's programmers provided 30-

minute storytimes to the community and visited multiple classes at Bouncing Ball Cooperative 

Nursery School, Quiet Waters Montessori Academy, Innisfil Montessori Academy, YMCA Stay 

and Play, and Preschool Canada Eh to Zed. The children and teachers at the child care centres 

were always excited to see our staff and join in with songs, stories, and dancing. After the visits, 

each child got to take home a colouring sheet with Library information as well. This was a 

fantastic way to connect with the community and share the resources that the library can offer to 

our community partners and families in Innisfil. 

Volunteer Appreciation 

The Volunteer Appreciation Afternoon Tea was held at Innisfil's Town Hall on Saturday to 

celebrate local volunteers during National Volunteer Week. The event treated volunteers to a 

variety of cookies and scones, as well as tea, while they mingled with friends. Barrie-Innisfil MP 

John Brassard, MPP Andrea Khanjin, members of Town Council, and Library Board members 

Chair Anne Smith, Sue Bennett, and Councillor Jennifer Richardson were also in attendance. 

 

The event was an excellent opportunity to acknowledge the contribution of volunteers in Innisfil, 

thank them for their valuable service to the community, and celebrate and appreciate the hard 

work and dedication of these volunteers and their impact on the community. We appreciate and 

acknowledge the dedication of our Library volunteers who help build and tend our gardens and 

deliver Library materials to Innisfil resident 

through our Home Library Service. 

 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

4 

 

 

TRY SOMETHING NEW 

Your Next Great Read 
We have developed a new online 

readers’ advisory service called Your 

Next Great Read. Customers can submit 

requests for reading recommendations 

online, choosing which of the Library’s 

Subject Specialists they would like to 

hear from. This initiative highlights two of 

the Library’s greatest assets: our 

collections and our staff! By linking staff 

interests to reading recommendations, 

in-branch displays, and online promotion 

through our website, social media, and 

newsletter, Library customers are more 

likely to discover and use more library 

resources. The dedicated webpage links 

to staff profiles in Bibliocommons, our 

online catalogue, and allows customers 

to explore the collection further through 

book lists and reviews created by staff. 

Find Your Next Great Read today! 

 

 

PRESSREADER IN THE CATALOGUE 

The entire collection of PressReader’s digital magazines and newspapers is now available to 

search in the catalogue. Customers can access these digital publications in multiple languages, 

including the Toronto Star, National Geographic and Maclean’s. They can be found by filtering 

search results by online magazines and newspapers, providing an easy way for customers to 

access these amazing resources and to improve discoverability of this convenient, multilingual 

resource. 

 

  

Build UP our reputation as a trusted  

community asset 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

5 

 

 

 

CREATIVE MAKING & DISCOVERY 
Code Jams 
In today's digital age, coding has become an essential skill that can benefit children in a variety 
of ways. Code Jams, a weekly coding program, is designed to promote problem-solving skills, 
creativity and innovation. During the weekly sessions, participants learn about a wide range of 
coding software, such as Micro:Bit and MakeCode Arcade. Using these platforms, they are able 
to design and create their own arcade games, as well as use a micro:bit controller to learn to 
code lights, temperature and movements. This six week program, although originally designed 
for participants ages 10 - 14, has become a multi-generational program with adult participants 
also joining in to learn to code. As interest in this program continues to grow, the Library Staff 
decided to offer a second session this summer based out of the Cookstown Branch to offer new 
and exciting opportunities to members of the community who may not be able to get to the 
Lakeshore Branch. 

 

PREPARING FOR SPRING 

Innisfil’s Seedy Saturday 
The 6th annual Innisfil Seedy Saturday was held at 

the Lakeshore Branch, and both visitors and 

exhibitors had a positive experience enjoying the 

offerings and the format of the event. A highlight of 

the day was the presentation by renowned author 

and native plant specialist Lorraine Johnson. Her 

talk was highly anticipated, with an at-capacity 

audience. Second to that, the Innisfil Seed Library, 

in its 8th year, was a popular destination for visitors 

looking for free seeds to borrow and grow, with 

95% selecting the seed library as one of the things 

they liked most about the event. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Library Staff prepared a  

special seedy storytime. 

 

Raise UP the Library’s identity as an  

innovative hub 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

6 

 
 

The Library Teams participated, hosting a full crowd at their morning storytime, and the 

HackLAB had many visitors through the doors to make an Upcycle Self-Watering Seed Starter 

pot. This project turned old 2-liter plastic bottles into seed starter pots that will automatically 

draw moisture up from their water reservoir to keep the potting mix damp and plants happy. The 

blend of free offerings and activities with vendors was well-balanced, allowing everyone to enjoy 

the day. The Library also showcased borrowable gardening tools from the Library of Things, and 

the event collected a substantial amount of food for the Troy Scott Fridges. 

 

Innisfil Seedy Saturday was an excellent opportunity for people to connect, learn, and share 

their love of gardening and sustainability. 

 

  

"What a lovely event! 

Well done, I'm excited 

and inspired to work on 

my garden and try some 

new seeds." 

"It is a pleasure spending 
time with other people 

who are passionate 
about gardening and 
sustainability. Thank 

you!" 

 

"I was duly impressed 

with the selection of 

tables there and the 

crowd that attended." 

 "We are very lucky to 

have a dedicated group 

like this in Innisfil." 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

7 

 

 

LIFELONG LEARNING 

Building Community with Crafting for Humanity 
We have seen increased engagement with our already well regarded Crafting for Humanity 

program. All April dates were fully registered, and for the Chunky Baby Bear Beanies session 

there were 9 registrants on the waitlist–more than enough to run a whole second session! There 

is a significant impact for program participants who visit the Library seeking interpersonal 

connections. 

There was a range of crafting experience in the group, and everyone shared 

the different crafts they enjoyed while we crocheted our earwarmers. One of 

the ladies mentioned that she was looking for more social activities, and a 

Staff member recommended Crafting for Humanity and helped her sign up. 

She hadn't crocheted in a while, so between me and another more 

experienced crafter we got her started on this project. A few in the group 

mentioned that they are part of the knitting group that gets together at 

Lakeshore on Thursdays, and exchanged contact info with our new 

participants and invited them to come out on Thursdays as well, as they all 

help each other with their different yarn projects. One of the ladies also shared 

that she has been looking for a new quilting group since COVID shut down her 

last one, and a few of the others said they would love to have a quilting group 

that could meet at the library starting in the fall.  

Children’s Programs 
 

Preschool programs continue to be in high demand for the April/May session, with full 

registration in each age category.  The library is currently running two of each program (Baby 

Bookworms, Fun For Ones, Time for Twos, Ready Set School) each week, taking place in each 

of the three branches, as well as drop in family storytimes Wednesdays at the Cookstown 

branch, Fridays at the Stroud branch, and Saturdays at the Lakeshore branch. Waitlists for 

these registered preschool programs varies between 2-10 families on each list, and we 

encourage families on the waitlist to attend drop in storytimes and the EarlyON 

programs.  Families not only attend these programs for the early literacy benefits, but also the 

community building, social skills, and connecting with other families in Innisfil.  We often hear 

caregivers sharing struggles and accomplishments with each other, and planning other meetups 

and activities with friends discovered at library programs. 
 

Light UP pathways to personal &  

professional growth 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

8 

Sociable Seniors 

 
An engaging two-part program was developed for Sociable Seniors that involved creating 

miniature bookshelves. During the first session, each participant was provided with an empty 

cigar box that was then transformed into a tiny bookshelf using scrapbooking "wallpaper" and 

stickers. The participants were fascinated by the endless possibilities that this craft offered, with 

themes ranging from travel and music to fairy tales. They spent the entire hour and a half 

creating their bookshelves, engrossed in the collage aspect of the craft. The activity also 

sparked great conversations among the participants about the benefits of getting out and 

engaging in such activities for mental health. One participant even expressed how much her 

participation in different library and community programs has enriched her life, allowing her to 

make new friends and enjoy life to the fullest. 

 

During the second week of the program, participants focused on installing shelves and placing 

miniature items onto their bookshelves. The participants were eager to adorn their structures 

with a variety of miniature items, such as tiny plants, flowers, teacups, saucers, and little 

furniture. One participant even created a whimsical witch theme for her shelf, with her books 

hanging from the bottom of the shelf as if by magic. The activity concluded with expressions of 

gratitude from the participants, with one sending a follow-up email thanking the program 

coordinator for an "awesome craft" that she 

"absolutely loved it." 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

9 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT & TRAINING 

Evergreen Conference 

The Technical Services Librarian attended the virtual session of the International Evergreen 
Conference held from April 26-29. The conference featured presenters from the Evergreen 
development community, other library systems and consortia who use Evergreen, and affiliate 
vendors who support Evergreen. Topics included new and upcoming developments in 
Evergreen; current best practices and feature utilization; staff and patron account security and 
privacy; and developments in other software affiliated with Evergreen. The conference provided 
an opportunity for the Library to gain valuable insights into the operations of other library 
systems; learn more about the benefits of belonging to an open-source community; and plan for 
future Evergreen development at the Library 

 

Canadian Public Library Collection Management Group 

The Manager of Collection Services joined the Canadian Public Library Collection Management 
Group, which was organized in March of this year to help librarians across the country 
communicate on a variety of collections-related topics. The Group has an online chat group, and 
meets on a monthly basis. Members include librarians from all sizes of public libraries, ranging 
from small ones serving populations under 20 000, up to the largest ones in the country, 
including Toronto, Ottawa, Calgary, and Edmonton public libraries.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

10 

APPENDIX A: 

Level UP! Communications Insights 

Media Outreach & Social Media Response 

DATE 
PUBLISHED 

NEWS 
OUTLET 

TITLE 

Apr. 3, 2023 Innisfil Today 

Barrie Today 

'Incredible event': Seedy Saturday in Innisfil kicks off 
spring 

Apr. 4, 2023 Simcoe.com 
5 Things to do at Innisfil ideaLAB and Library this month 

April 20, 2023 FM92 Help the Planet this Earth Day 

Apr. 22, 2023 Barrie 360 Celebrate Earth Day in Innisfil 

Apr. 24, 2023 Barrie Today 
'Small changes can go a long way': Innisfil celebrates 
Earth Day 

Apr. 28, 2023 Innisfil Today Spring Smile Cookie campaign to support area libraries 

 

  

https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/incredible-event-seedy-saturday-in-innisfil-kicks-off-spring-6803620
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/incredible-event-seedy-saturday-in-innisfil-kicks-off-spring-6795599?utm_source=Villager&utm_campaign=Content&utm_medium=Facebook_Graph&fbclid=IwAR1xVz6wQDRMcArzqKn0vwoZ52F7GmTd4rPrXBfnJ6vGCKPyuWIc32dCUHg
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/incredible-event-seedy-saturday-in-innisfil-kicks-off-spring-6795599?utm_source=Villager&utm_campaign=Content&utm_medium=Facebook_Graph&fbclid=IwAR1xVz6wQDRMcArzqKn0vwoZ52F7GmTd4rPrXBfnJ6vGCKPyuWIc32dCUHg
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/5-things-to-do-at-innisfil-idealab-and-library-this-month/article_6db0e9d9-8fe3-5c18-946d-77a664d49a9f.html
https://www.southsimcoetoday.ca/2023/04/20/help-the-planet-this-earth-day/?fbclid=IwAR3pKIUIqOcBXEzj-qn5Igu2GinxMJYP2LjRhL4tyBe3jNGiqUw1o7qanik
https://barrie360.com/celebrate-earth-day-innisfil/
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/small-changes-can-go-a-long-way-innisfil-celebrates-earth-day-6897962
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/small-changes-can-go-a-long-way-innisfil-celebrates-earth-day-6897962
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/spring-smile-cookie-campaign-to-support-area-libraries-6922531


5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

11 

Facebook Insights (April 1 to 30, 2022) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 
POSTS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TOTAL IMPRESSIONS 

3,711 (Followers) 
3,081 Page Likes 

61 during 
this period 

618 engagements (459 
reactions, 38 shares, 
121 comments) 

Posts earned 11K 
impressions over this period 
(number of times our posts 
have entered a person's 
screen) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Date April 11, 2023 2.1K Reach 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

12 

Twitter Insights (April 1 to 30, 2022) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 
TWEETS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TWEET IMPRESSIONS 

1,541 
  

34 during 
this period 

41 engagements (26 likes, 4 
retweets, 8 quote tweets, 3 
replies) 

22 Mentions 

6.5K impressions over this 
period (number of times users 
saw our tweets) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Top Tweet earned 748 impressions 

 

 

  



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

13 

Instagram Insights (April 1 to 30, 2022) 

FOLLOWERS # OF POSTS TOTAL LIKES & 
REACH 

TOTAL COMMENTS 

1,900 42 during this period 2,993 accounts 
reached. 

854 likes.  

20 comments in total on 
content posted during this 
period 

Top Post (based on engagement): April 28, 2023  500 Reach 

 



5c.01.01 CEO’s Report for April 2023 

14 

Top Reel (based on engagement): April 26, 2023  1.8K Reach

 

 



7a.01.01 
Municipal Council Report  

 

April 4, 2023 Facilities Master Plan Open House 

● Watch the meeting. 

● Members of the public were invited to attend the kick off open house for the Town’s 

facilities Master Plan. The facility master plan is in its early stages and expect to see 

additional reports and consultations. 

 

April 12, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● Dave Ritchie of the Simcoe County Federation of Agriculture delivered an introductory 

presentation to Council. 2023.04.12 SCFA Presentation                  

● Lakehead University delivered an informational presentation on the importance and 

impact of the post-secondary institution as well as its partnership with Georgian College 

to the region. Download the 2023.04.12 Lakehead University Presentation. Dr. Linda 

Rodenburg, Interim Orillia Principal - Lakehead University, indicated they had been in 

prior talks (pre-pandemic) to conduct engagement in Innisfil with the ideaLAB & Library 

and indicated an interest in reinitiating that opportunity. 

● Highlights include: 

○ 41 % increase in university degree level program enrolment since 2016 

○ 94% of students experience at least one barrier to education 

○ 54% of students are the first in their family to attend postsecondary 

○ 24% of students originate from rural and remote communities 

○ 58% of domestic undergrad students are receiving some form of financial aid 

● A delegation by Procyon Wildlife Rehabilitation and Education Centre was received, 

seeking support for a wildlife assistance program.2023.04.12 Procyon Wildlife 

Rehabilitation 

● A new traffic calming strategy was adopted DSR-052-23 Traffic Calming Strategy - 

Report and Policy Update. During development of the strategy, best practices, findings 

from other jurisdictions, and public input were used to develop: 

○ A traffic calming Design Guide 

○ A revised Traffic Calming Policy 

○ A prioritized Traffic Calming Program and a methodology for prioritization of 

warranted works as these are identified in future years. 

● Two additional reports for action were adopted related to traffic safety: 

○ DSR-054-23 Red Light Camera Program - Pdf 

○ DSR-053-23 Automated Speed Enforcement - Part 2 - Pdf 

● Council received an Accessibility Status Report 

● Council received the 2022 Year End Update - KPIs and Metrics 

 

  

https://www.youtube.com/live/exhCsNR0Mxo?feature=share
https://www.youtube.com/live/Ytqz47DSeHo?feature=share
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/3ADDE8E4BAC5467DA61C06E7ADC71A37-2023.04.12%20SCFA%20Presentation%20(ID%20743028).pptx
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/67EFE48B6B4447578F23A7C00C4999CE-2023.04.12%20Lakehead%20University%20Presentation%20(ID%2074.pptx
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/93FE0E8656474CE4A1AC2785AAD55D2F-2023.04.12%20Procyon%20Wildlife%20Rehabilitation%20Delegat.pptx
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/93FE0E8656474CE4A1AC2785AAD55D2F-2023.04.12%20Procyon%20Wildlife%20Rehabilitation%20Delegat.pptx
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/5AD1BC35C0224A4E9374DD3A980C53EC-Traffic%20Calming%20Strategy%20-%20Report%20and%20Policy%20Up.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/5AD1BC35C0224A4E9374DD3A980C53EC-Traffic%20Calming%20Strategy%20-%20Report%20and%20Policy%20Up.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/2F3489802608491E87394B05A781EA23-Red%20Light%20Camera%20Program.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/7EBA31A134F04F47B85AF84E14C8D164-Automated%20Speed%20Enforcement%20-%20Part%202.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/C335520BA9DF4FC399E8FDF01E4B0ABE-2022%20Accessibility%20Status%20Report.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/62DDFF38B30E43A7A4EBAC3CC29FF23A-2022%20Year%20End%20Update%20-%20KPIs%20and%20Metrics.pdf


7a.01.01 
Municipal Council Report  

 

April 19, 2023 Special Council Public Meeting Community Benefits Charge  

● Members of the public were invited to attend a special council meeting and to learn more 

about the Community Benefits Charges Strategy. 

 

April 26, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● Council received a presentation from Staff regarding the Land and Lake Plans PKS105 - 

that combine the Lake Enjoyment Strategy and the Parks and Recreation Master Plans. 

● Staff were authorized to implement the Community Benefits Charges (CBC) Strategy & 

By-law 

● 2023 Final Tax Levy By-law being a by-law to approve the Final Tax Levy By-law, was 

adopted.  

● A number of zoning by-law amendments were considered during this meeting. 

● Council received an Integrated Sustainability Master Plan Update 

● Council received a Giant Rocking Horse Update. 

 

News from the Community 

● ‘Natural choice’: South Simcoe police swear in new deputy chief - Barrie Today    

●  South Simcoe Police swear in newest deputy chief – Simcoe.com   

●  ‘Small changes can go a long way’: Innisfil celebrates Earth Day – Barrie Today  

● Celebrate Earth Day in Innisfil – Barrie 360   

●  Innisfil looking for feedback on ‘land and lake plan’ - Barrie Today  

●  Innisfil could rewrite ward boundaries with resident help – Simcoe.com   

● ‘Incredible event’: Seedy Saturday in Innisfil kicks off spring – Barrie Today   

● Town of Innisfil holding facilities master plan open house, evaluating town arenas, 

community centres – Simcoe.com   

● Innisfil partnership developing volunteer database (simcoe.com)  

Innisfil holding facilities master plan open house April 4 (simcoe.com)  

● Comforts of home: Rotary club hosts Habitat for Humanity Huronia - Innisfil News 

(innisfiltoday.ca)  

● Speed cameras proposed for Barrie and Innisfil to curb aggressive driving | CTV News  

● New speed-camera program could be 'game-changer' in Innisfil - Barrie News 

(barrietoday.com)  

● South Simcoe Police Service unveils new text messaging system (barrie360.com)  

● South Simcoe police launch texting service for victims, callers - Barrie News 

(barrietoday.com) 

● Innisfil receiving over $545,000 for Cookstown street repairs (barrie360.com)  

 

https://www.youtube.com/live/2X7vbya9ePM?feature=share
https://www.youtube.com/live/0SWmwA6fJQI?feature=share
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/A966ACD2D3B84D03BAD5C918765F72E2-2023.04.26%20Land%20and%20Lake%20Presentation%20to%20Council%20P.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/8FF48A025B314464AC194CC867CBFE4A-Community%20Benefits%20Charges%20(CBC)%20Strategy%20_%20By-.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/8FF48A025B314464AC194CC867CBFE4A-Community%20Benefits%20Charges%20(CBC)%20Strategy%20_%20By-.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/978E4B7747364793B454BAB0CE40FA97-2023%20Final%20Tax%20Levy%20By-law.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/B3C3962907834881B120AA4F2A504ED9-Integrated%20Sustainability%20Master%20Plan%20Update.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/C4FCA6FABA8545B9A977073A3E857165-Giant%20Rocking%20Horse%20Update.pdf
https://www.barrietoday.com/police-beat/natural-choice-south-simcoe-police-swear-in-new-deputy-chief-6916006
https://www.simcoe.com/news/a-trusted-adviser-to-the-chief-south-simcoe-police-swear-in-new-second-in-command/article_167fcf74-5dac-5712-902c-5bcafb1a83f5.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/a-trusted-adviser-to-the-chief-south-simcoe-police-swear-in-new-second-in-command/article_167fcf74-5dac-5712-902c-5bcafb1a83f5.html
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/small-changes-can-go-a-long-way-innisfil-celebrates-earth-day-6897962
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/small-changes-can-go-a-long-way-innisfil-celebrates-earth-day-6897962
https://barrie360.com/celebrate-earth-day-innisfil/
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/innisfil-looking-for-feedback-on-land-and-lake-plan-6882375
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/innisfil-looking-for-feedback-on-land-and-lake-plan-6882375
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/a-tremendous-opportunity-innisfil-needs-your-help-to-determine-new-ward-boundaries-and-boost-election/article_7f1ad524-b751-5a01-928c-88f6d3d11a0f.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/a-tremendous-opportunity-innisfil-needs-your-help-to-determine-new-ward-boundaries-and-boost-election/article_7f1ad524-b751-5a01-928c-88f6d3d11a0f.html
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/incredible-event-seedy-saturday-in-innisfil-kicks-off-spring-6803620
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/town-of-innisfil-holding-facilities-master-plan-open-house-evaluating-town-arenas-community-centres/article_685ac47f-cff4-5eb9-a18f-8a8aba344530.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/town-of-innisfil-holding-facilities-master-plan-open-house-evaluating-town-arenas-community-centres/article_685ac47f-cff4-5eb9-a18f-8a8aba344530.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/innisfil-partners-with-contact-community-services-to-create-volunteer-database/article_884e33df-48f0-57d0-9151-e6de7e487ce9.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/town-of-innisfil-holding-facilities-master-plan-open-house-evaluating-town-arenas-community-centres/article_685ac47f-cff4-5eb9-a18f-8a8aba344530.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/comforts-of-home-rotary-club-hosts-habitat-for-humanity-huronia-6791677
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/comforts-of-home-rotary-club-hosts-habitat-for-humanity-huronia-6791677
https://barrie.ctvnews.ca/barrie-and-innisfil-look-to-introduce-speed-cameras-to-curb-aggressive-driving-1.6341178
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/new-speed-camera-program-could-be-game-changer-in-innisfil-6760599
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/new-speed-camera-program-could-be-game-changer-in-innisfil-6760599
https://barrie360.com/south-simcoe-police-text-messaging-communication/
https://www.barrietoday.com/police-beat/south-simcoe-police-launch-texting-service-for-victims-callers-6813659
https://www.barrietoday.com/police-beat/south-simcoe-police-launch-texting-service-for-victims-callers-6813659
https://barrie360.com/innisfil-cookstown-street-repairs/


INNISFIL PUBLIC COMMITTEE REPORT 

STAFF REPORT NO.: LIB-03-2023 

DATE: May 15, 2023 

TO: Innisfil Public Library Board 

FROM: Finance Committee 

SUBJECT: 2023 Q1 Operating & Capital Update 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Committee Report LIB-03-2023 regarding the 2023 Q1 Update dated May 15, 
2023 be received. 

Background: 
On February 8, 2023, through Staff Report DSR-018-23, Town Council approved the 

Library Board’s 2023 Operating Budget in the amount of $3,741,817, and the 2023 

Capital Budget in the amount of $350,915. Finalized Operating and Capital results to 

March 31, 2023, are included in this report.  

Financial Results – Operating 

The Operating budget provides for expenses that cover day-to-day expenditures and 

activities including utilities, insurance, staff wages and benefits, program supplies, 

collections, and facility maintenance.  It includes revenues expected to be received from 

fees, room rentals, grants, and other miscellaneous sources, as well as the contribution 

from the Town of Innisfil.   

As of March 31, 2022, the total operating budget was at 18% of total budgeted 

revenues, and 21% of total budgeted expenses.  

Appendix A provides a detailed financial report of the Q1 Operating Results. 

7c.01.01



2 

 

Overview of Revenues 

Registration & Facility Fees: Hall rentals are trending higher at 62% of total budgeted 

amount; registration fees are on target. 

User Fees & Licenses: Trending slightly lower at 20% of budget.  

Grants: In Q1 there was a carry-over of Provincial grant funding from 2022 and a new 

Federal Grant for 2023 related to the Community Volunteer Income Tax Program.  

*Note – The only grant the Library has a budget for is the Provincial Operating 

Grant, which is a set amount each year and is typically received in Q3. 

Overview of Expenditures 

Wages & Benefits: Trending slightly lower at 22% of budgeted amount due to employee 

leaves and gapping dollars from unfilled positions. 

Materials & Supplies: Trending lower at 16% of budgeted amount mostly due to 

transactions that typically occur later in the calendar year.  

*Note – Public Relations is typically over-spent and is offset by miscellaneous 

revenues. 

Other Expenditures: Utilities slightly higher than budgeted; Contracts lower due to 

transactions that typically occur later in the calendar year; Rents & financials are on 

track.  

Facility Related expenses: All facility expenditures are on track, with a larger variance at 

the Churchill location due to inactivity and snow removal fees (to be charged in Q2). 

Overall, the cost of natural gas was trending higher than normal, likely due to the colder 

than normal weather in Q1.  

Financial Results – Capital 

The 2023 approved capital budget consists of funding requests for planned capital 

expenditures expected to occur in the upcoming years that are required to undertake or 

complete capital initiatives. In addition to the 2023 approved capital projects, the Library 

Board has carried over projects approved in previous years.  

• Year to date spending for capital projects is $14,061, related to projects LIB44, 

LIB5 and LIB67. 



3 

 

• Planned spending for Q2 is $140,000, with the opening of projects LIB4, LIB52 

and LIB68 and completion of LIB39. 

• Deferred projects due to staffing resources, coordination and alignment to other 

plans/activities/partners include LIB37, LIB45, LIB65, LIB66. 

• LIB42 deferred to 2025. 

Appendix B provides a detailed financial report of the Q1 Capital Results. 

Financial Consideration: 
Since it is early in the year, it is difficult to forecast how the year will unfold and the 
resulting financial impacts.  Staff will continue to monitor the operating financial results 
to ensure that the year-end results are in-line with the approved budget.  We do 
however recognize that the budget estimates are developed with the best information 
known at the time, and that there are numerous factors that can impact the final results.  
Accordingly, Staff will employ cost mitigating strategies when required, and will keep the 
Library Board’s Finance Committee and the Library Board informed of progress through 
the financial quarterly reports.  
 
Conclusion: 
This report provides information to the Library Board regarding the operating and capital 
activities that occurred during the first quarter of 2023. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:   
 
Erin Scuccimarri, CEO 
 
  
 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
Finance Committee: Anne Smith, Rob Nicol, Sue Bennett & Rhonda Flanagan 
 
 
 



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

Library Operating

Library Fleet

Total  Library Fleet 0% 3,545

Library Administration

Revenue

Registration & Facility Fees

Facility Rental

4438 Hall Rental ‐6,204 62% ‐10,000

Total  Facility Rental ‐6,204 62% ‐10,000

Registration Fees

4464 Programming ‐6,187 27% ‐23,000

Total  Registration Fees ‐6,187 27% ‐23,000

Total  Registration & Facility Fees ‐12,391 38% ‐33,000

User Fees, Licences and Fines

User Fees

4447 Misc. Revenue ‐4,486 15% ‐30,000

4490 Photocopy Etc. ‐2,879 38% ‐7,500

4491 Books ‐1,080 39% ‐2,800

4492 ideaSHOP sales ‐24 1% ‐2,000

Total  User Fees ‐8,469 20% ‐42,300

Total  User Fees, Licences and Fines ‐8,469 20% ‐42,300

Other

Government Grants

4100 Grants ‐ Ontario ‐1,503 3% ‐45,921

4200 Grants ‐ Federal ‐1,000 0%

Total  Government Grants ‐2,503 5% ‐45,921

Other Revenue

4760 Donations ‐138

Total  Other Revenue ‐138

Total  Other ‐2,641 6% ‐45,921

Total  Revenue ‐23,501 19% ‐121,222

Expenditures

Wages & Benefits

Total  Wages & Benefits 683,043 22% 3,074,294

Materials & Supplies

Facility/Park Maintenance

7080 Cleaning Supplies 1,063 12% 9,000

Total  Facility/Park Maintenance 1,063 12% 9,000

Advertising & Publicity

7020 Advertising & Publicity 85 1% 8,865

Total  Advertising & Publicity 85 1% 8,865

Clothing

Appendix A - Q1 2023 Operating Results



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

5210 Clothing/PPE 0% 675

Total  Clothing 0% 675

Education, Seminars & Memberships

5230 Education & Development 4,340 22% 20,000

7300 Prof. Dues & Memberships 505 17% 2,993

Total  Education, Seminars & Memberships 4,845 21% 22,993

Equipment Maintenance

7140 Equipment Maintenance 3,007 137% 2,200

Total  Equipment Maintenance 3,007 137% 2,200

Office, Printing & Postage

7360 Office Supplies 2,668 29% 9,296

7400 Photocopy 937 9% 10,000

7440 Postage 221 22% 1,000

7460 Printing 0% 7,240

Total  Office, Printing & Postage 3,826 14% 27,536

Materials

7029 Electronic Collections 8,645 8% 108,525

7041 Physical Collections 28,591 22% 132,000

7280 Material 5,044 23% 22,000

7283 Technology Supplies  5,638 29% 19,500

7284 ideaSHOP Supplies  0% 500

Total  Materials 47,918 17% 282,525

Other Expenses

5120 Board&Committee /Non‐payroll 0% 4,000

7320 Mileage 1,944 20% 9,858

7389 Culture Engagement 1,173 4% 32,500

7470 Programming ‐ Children 3,312 23% 14,260

7545 Project Expense 2,564 0%

Total  Other Expenses 8,993 15% 60,618

Public Relations

7485 Public Relations 4,089 54% 7,503

Total  Public Relations 4,089 54% 7,503

Software Maintenance and Licencing

7580 Software Annual Maint. Fees 1,057 2% 50,752

Total  Software Maintenance and Licencing 1,057 2% 50,752

Total  Materials & Supplies 74,883 16% 472,667

Utilities

Telephone and Utilities

7600 Telephone 1,489 42% 3,508

Total  Telephone and Utilities 1,489 42% 3,508

Total  Utilities 1,489 42% 3,508

Contracted  Services



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

Audit Fees

8080 Audit 1,323 25% 5,241

Total  Audit Fees 1,323 25% 5,241

Contracts

8250 Contracts ‐ Labour 3,133

8290 Contracts 10,888

Total  Contracts 0% 14,021

Total  Contracted  Services 1,323 7% 19,262

Rents & Financial

Service Charges

9110 Debit/Visa Charges 914 20% 4,481

Total  Service Charges 914 20% 4,481

Total  Rents & Financial 914 20% 4,481

Total  Expenditures 761,652 21% 3,574,212

Total  Library Administration 738,151 21% 3,452,990

Stroud Branch

Expenditures

Materials & Supplies

Facility/Park Maintenance

7180 Facility/Parks Maintenance 139 3% 4,550

Total  Facility/Park Maintenance 139 3% 4,550

Insurance

7220 Insurance 492 26% 1,926

Total  Insurance 492 26% 1,926

Total  Materials & Supplies 631 10% 6,476

Utilities

Telephone and Utilities

7600 Telephone 116 6% 1,855

Total  Telephone and Utilities 116 6% 1,855

Total  Utilities 116 6% 1,855

Contracted  Services

Cleaning Contract

8185 Cleaning Contract 2,035 23% 8,990

Total  Cleaning Contract 2,035 23% 8,990

Total  Contracted  Services 2,035 23% 8,990

Internal Recoveries/Transfers

Internal Rental Expenditure(Revenue)

9610 Facility rental expenditures(I 6,572 25% 26,300

Total  Internal Rental Expenditure(Revenue) 6,572 25% 26,300

Total  Internal Recoveries/Transfers 6,572 25 26,300

Total  Expenditures 9,354 21% 43,620

Total  Stroud Branch 9,354 21% 43,620



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

Churchill Branch

Expenditures

Materials & Supplies

Facility/Park Maintenance

7180 Facility/Parks Maintenance 361 14% 2,500

Total  Facility/Park Maintenance 361 14% 2,500

Insurance

7220 Insurance 741 24% 3,146

Total  Insurance 741 24% 3,146

Total  Materials & Supplies 1,102 20% 5,646

Utilities

Telephone and Utilities

7660 Utilities ‐ Hydro 244 15% 1,632

7680 Utilities ‐ Natural Gas 577 38% 1,502

7700 Utilities ‐ Water/Sewer 81 22% 370

Total  Telephone and Utilities 902 26% 3,504

Total  Utilities 902 26% 3,504

Contracted  Services

Contracts

8325 Contracts ‐ Grass Cutting 0% 992

8850 Snow Removal 0% 3,722

Total  Contracts 0% 4,714

Total  Contracted  Services 0% 4,714

Internal Recoveries/Transfers

Internal Transfers

9681 Snow Clearing ‐ Expenditures 0% 2,500

Total  Internal Transfers 0% 2,500

Total  Internal Recoveries/Transfers 0% 2,500

Total  Expenditures 2,004 12% 16,364

Total  Churchill Branch 2,004 12% 16,364

Cookstown Branch

Expenditures

Materials & Supplies

Facility/Park Maintenance

7180 Facility/Parks Maintenance 471 2% 20,018

Total  Facility/Park Maintenance 471 2% 20,018

Insurance

7220 Insurance 3,281 21% 15,595

Total  Insurance 3,281 21% 15,595

Total  Materials & Supplies 3,752 11% 35,613

Utilities

Telephone and Utilities



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

7600 Telephone 232 12% 2,000

7660 Utilities ‐ Hydro 7,549 26% 28,500

7680 Utilities ‐ Natural Gas 769 31% 2,500

7700 Utilities ‐ Water/Sewer 473 22% 2,138

Total  Telephone and Utilities 9,023 26% 35,138

Total  Utilities 9,023 26% 35,138

Contracted  Services

Cleaning Contract

8185 Cleaning Contract 2,544 19% 13,395

Total  Cleaning Contract 2,544 19% 13,395

Contracts

8850 Snow Removal 6,157 52% 11,942

Total  Contracts 6,157 52% 11,942

Total  Contracted  Services 8,701 34% 25,337

Internal Recoveries/Transfers

Internal Rental Expenditure(Revenue)

9600 Facility rental revenue(Intern ‐7,247 25% ‐29,000

Total  Internal Rental Expenditure(Revenue) ‐7,247 25% ‐29,000

Total  Expenditures 104,765 43% 246,192

Total  Cookstown Branch 14,229 21% 67,088

Lakeshore Branch

Expenditures

Materials & Supplies

Facility/Park Maintenance

7180 Facility/Parks Maintenance 3,375 11% 30,535

Total  Facility/Park Maintenance 3,375 11% 30,535

Insurance

7220 Insurance 6,757 21% 32,632

Total  Insurance 6,757 21% 32,632

Total  Materials & Supplies 10,132 16% 63,167

Utilities

Telephone and Utilities

7600 Telephone 292 8% 3,700

7660 Utilities ‐ Hydro 6,687 19% 35,495

7680 Utilities ‐ Natural Gas 6,196 48% 12,795

7700 Utilities ‐ Water/Sewer 843 20% 4,290

Total  Telephone and Utilities 14,018 25% 56,280

Total  Utilities 14,018 25% 56,280

Contracted  Services

Cleaning Contract

8185 Cleaning Contract 2,564 15% 17,335

Total  Cleaning Contract 2,564 15% 17,335



Year to YTD Actual as 2023

Date a Percent Total

Actuals of Budget Budget

Contracts

8325 Contracts ‐ Grass Cutting 1,000

8850 Snow Removal 10,532 52% 20,427

Total  Contracts 10,532 49% 21,427

Total  Contracted  Services 13,096 34% 38,762

Total  Expenditures 37,246 24% 158,209

Total  Lakeshore Branch 37,246 24% 158,209

Total  Library Operating 800,984 21% 3,741,817

Total Library 800,984 21% 3,741,817



Carryover 2023 Total Actual Expenditure

from Prior Budget Approved Spent to Still to

Years Approved Budget Date Occur

Library

LIB4 RFID 50,000 50,000 50,000

LIB5 Electronic Equipment ‐ All Branches 34,948 80,915 115,863 1,976 113,887

LIB37 Cookstown Facility Assessment & Repairs 112,298 112,298 112,298

LIB39 Job Evaluation/Job Description/Pay Equity 7,185 7,185 7,185

LIB42 Design / Preparation for ideaLAB & Library with Recreational Component in Lefroy 550,000 550,000 550,000

LIB44 Organizational Review          40,000 40,000 10,120 29,880

LIB45 Updated Needs Assessment Study 40,000 40,000 40,000

LIB52 Replacement Furnishings        19,458 30,000 49,458 49,458

LIB65 Marketing Kiosks               99,993 99,993 99,993

LIB66 Mobile Outreach Unit (InnMotion) 78,000 78,000 78,000

LIB68 Movable Meeting Space 90,000 90,000 90,000

LIB67 Space Planning 100,000 100,000 1,965 98,035

Total  Library 981,882 350,915 1,332,797 14,061 1,318,736

Appendix B - Q1 2023 Capital Results



JHSC Meeting Agenda

MEETING DATE: Thursday, April 20, 2023

TIME: 1:00PM

LOCATION: Ops Meeting Room 2 and Teams

CO-CHAIRS: Management Co-Chair – Eric Chudzinski; Worker Co-Chair Richard Rivet

MINUTES: Jennifer Miyasaki

ATTENDANCE Nick Ayers, Eric Chudzinski, Jennifer Miyasaki, Richard Rivet, Jennifer Sheremeto,
Sierra Warren, Kristi Williams

REGRETS Ken Schuyler, Paul Tomaszewski

Item Agenda Item Lead Item Details ACTION & NOTES

1. Call Meeting
to Order

Co-Chair - Time – opened - Meeting started at 1:08 p.m.

2. Approval of
Previous
Minutes

Co-Chair
2023.03.16 JHSC
Meeting Agenda
Minutes Draft.pdf
(Desktop, Web,
Mobile)

- Richard R. motioned to approve the minutes of the
previous meeting.

- Seconded by Jennifer M.
- All in favour; Motion Carried.

3. JHSC
members

Co-Chair
02.09.23 JHSC
Members February
2023 (Desktop, Web,
Mobile)

- No changes

4.
Workplace
Inspections

WHIMIS
LOTO

Co-Chair Roundtable
discussions

Richard – Minor infractions which were corrected
immediately; new housekeeping system for minor issues
working well.

Jennifer M – All locations were inspected on April 3;
Eric was present for the inspections; several small
deficiencies were noted and have since been resolved
and reflected in MOAR.

Nick – Inspected facilities – no major issues; Eric
participated in the inspected and took photos and notes

Paul – Absent

Kristi – Inspected Town Hall, minor hazards noted and
corrected; staff reported issues with potholes (tripping

7d.01.01



Page 2 of 3

hazards) and snow falling onto people from roof.  Will
look into further.

Rizzardo will be inspected next week

Also noted housekeeping issues at Town Hall
(vacuuming not being done)

Sierra -  Inspected Churchill Community Center, Knock
School and EcDev; some minor issues noted at Knock;
Churchill had some areas blocked but are now clear;
EcDev had some issues with fire extinguishers and
emergency exits being blocked.  Will be corrected.  Jen
S. will shadow Sierra on next month’s inspections and
proposed taking on other inspection locations in the
future.

Eric – General comments and review of common
inspection findings; electrical panel clearance was a
common infraction in several locations; clearance of 1m
as per electrical code, and it has to be accessible (no
debris on the floor, blocking path to panel); ensure there
is no exposed wiring – should have a cover/door;
WHMIS – products have to be properly labeled and
stored. WHMIS label requirements were updated – some
products have the old labels – need to ensure current
labels are on bottles/products; cleaning products with
consumer labelling are fine; Fire Extinguishers –
inspected monthly; and third party inspects annually;
ensure fire extinguishers and pull station are not
blocked.

5. SOP’s
Corporate
Policies

Co-Chair Any updates for
discussion?

- Ongoing; more SOPs than originally anticipated to
be updated.  Eric will set aside dedicated time to
complete this task with operations.

6. Workplace
Incidents &
Accidents

Co-Chair
Report on last
month’s accidents
(March 2023)

- Some slips/trips/fall reported; another injury
occurred involving an employee pulling a plow pin -
no medical aid was required; sidewalk plow hit a
parked car, no injuries, minor damaged to vehicle;
Zamboni hit rink door at Stroud arena, no injuries

7. Budget &
Training

Co-Chair

1. Budget (status
update)

2. Member
Certifications

1. Within budget ($2,128 remaining unplanned)

2. Kristi completed Part 1 on April 18th; Sierra
registered for Part 1 May 9-11; Jen S.
registered for refresher July 20th; Still need to
register Kristi and Sierra for Part 2 and
refresher for Ken.



Page 3 of 3

8. JHSC
Other

Business
All

Members

1. Terms of
Reference

2.  JHSC BBQ (status
update)

3. Day of Mourning
(April 28th)

1. Terms of reference suggest that minutes are
circulated to committee within one week after
meeting but not posted on Yammer until
approved at following meeting;  seeking clarity
on procedure/amend TOR to reflect process;
update TOR to include New Co-Chair;
ACTION: Eric and Jen M will take offline to
review and decide on appropriate action(s).

2. Invite has been sent and Yammer post done;
Jen M. will send out a reminder of the BBQ with
the draft minutes.

3. Day of Mourning is on April 28th; a day to reflect
on workers who have died or have been
seriously injured, and to the
family/friends/colleagues who were affected.
Communications will be issued next week

9. ACTION
ITEMS

Follow up

Co-Chair
Review of Action
items from March 16,
2023, meeting
minutes.

- ACTION: Jennifer M create a document collection
(complete)

- ACTION: Nick and Eric to work with Parks/Facilities
Managers to determine inspection requirements for
natural gas failsafe/detector  - will be added to
Natural Gas Maker inspection annually (complete)

- ACTION: Nick and Eric to work with Parks/Facilities
Managers to determine purpose and requirements
for CO/CO2 detectors at the IRC. – sensors require
upgrading; sensors will be inspected every 6
months – keep this action open until some sensors
are replaced

- ACTION: Send inspection feedback to Eric to
amend inspection forms in MOAR to be more site
specific (complete)

- ACTION: Eric to determine if new OHSA Books are
needed (current copies are 2022 version) – best
practice to update – will purchase new books
(complete)

- ACTION: Jen S and Sierra will contact our partners
to coordinate participation in JHSC BBQ (Fire
Services, CAO) (complete)

10. Close
Meeting

Co-Chair - Time enter of
meeting closed.

- Meeting closed at 2:15.p.m.



INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF REPORT 

STAFF REPORT NO.: LIB-04-2023 

DATE: May 15, 2023 

TO: INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 

FROM: Mandy Pethick,  
Manager, Collections Services and Library Services 

SUBJECT: Q1 Collections Report 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT Staff Report LIB-04-2023 Q1 Collections Report dated May 15, 2023 be received 
as information. 

DESCRIPTION 
This report provides an overview of major changes to collection services, and an 
assessment of the usage rates of the Library’s physical and digital collections for the 
first quarter of 2023 (January-March, inclusive), using the same period in 2022 as a 
comparator.  

PHYSICAL COLLECTIONS 
Use of the Library’s physical collections overall was 19% higher in the first quarter of the 
year. With the exception of the Young Adult (YA) collection, the increase is evident 
across all book collections, as well as DVDs, at varying rates. The lower use of the YA 
collection (-30%) reflects a correction following increased usage in 2022 after it was 
moved to a more prominent location in the Lakeshore Branch, drawing more attention 
from readers who may not have found it previously. While this may appear to be a 
significant decline, it is still 18% higher than Q1 of 2019, prior to the pandemic. This 
shows that making changes to our spaces and relocating collections draws attention 
and results in an increase in borrowing.  

7e.01.01



2 
 

 
 
Use of the children’s collections overall is trending up, a continuation of the pattern seen 
throughout the entirety of 2022. Circulation for Q1 of 2022 was 10 719, compared with 
17 838 in the same quarter in 2023. The auto-renewal feature in the Library’s system, 
Evergreen, was implemented in March of 2022, which accounts for some of the 
increase. Even when renewals are factored into the equation, there was still an increase 
of approximately 26% in the use of children’s materials. Compared with pre-pandemic 
usage, there is a 20% increase in this area.  
 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

1

2023 Q1 Usage: Physical Collections

Adult Fiction Picture Books Adult Non-Fiction

Video Games Easy Readers DVDs/Blu-Ray

Board Books Children's Fiction Children's Non-Fiction

Periodicals Large Print Audiobooks

Children's Graphic Novels YA Fiction Children's French

YA Graphic Novels Children's Spanish



3 
 

 
 
 
DIGITAL COLLECTIONS 
In contrast with the increase in use of the physical collections, there was a slight 
reduction in the use of the Library’s Digital Collection, - 4%. This is at least in part due to 
the difference in the status of the pandemic. In early 2022, there was still a number of 
restrictions in place and some people were reluctant to go to public locations, and were 
more likely to seek out digital alternatives to print materials. The Library’s final 
pandemic-related closure happened in January of 2022. This created a significant 
barrier for those borrowing materials, and many turned to our digital collections resulting 
in higher usage.  
 
While use of Digital Collections was down overall, a few services were more popular 
this year. Use of the Library’s eAudio books, through the Cloud Library service, was 9% 
higher.  
 
Two services were substantially more popular in 2023: HelpNow, and JobNow. Both 
services are part of the Brainfuse suite.  
 
HelpNow provides on demand, anytime, anywhere e-learning for all ages, including: 
one-on-one tutoring, a writing lab, practice tests, and many more features. Use was 
more than 5 times higher in Q1 of 2023, with 511 uses (compared with 78 in Q1 2022). 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

Circulation: Children's Materials
Jan. 2022-Mar. 2023

https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/brainfuse/


4 
 

 
JobNow is an online service designed to support job seekers. JobNow features live 
online coaches who can assist in resume/cover letter preparation and help people 
prepare for job interviews. Use was 2.34 times higher this year with 64 uses (compared 
with 19 in 2022).  
 

 
 
The popularity of both services is a continuation of the increased usage seen in the fall, 
following a promotional campaign organized by the Communications Team. This 
demonstrates the lasting impact of promotions and the value in investing the resources 
to ensure the public is aware of Library services.  
 
The second quarter of 2023 will provide more insight into use of digital collections as the 
2022 reference will better reflect typical conditions and customer behaviours.  
 
 
NEW RESOURCES 
As a result of the dissolution of the Simcoe County Library Cooperative, the physical 
World Languages Collections was removed at the end of 2022, (it was provided as a 
rotating collection, being changed out quarterly). In order to continue to provide access 
to books in languages other than English, the Collection Services Librarian worked with 
our ebook vendor, Cloud Library, to add content in the following languages: Russian, 
Spanish, French, Portuguese, and Tamil. These languages were selected based on the 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

HelpNow JobNow

Brainfuse Services

2022 2023



5 
 

2021 Census data for Innisfil. Staff will analyze the use of these multi-lingual resources 
and make changes as needed to address the unique needs of our residents. 
 
The Library added LinkedIn Learning to our roster of digital services in April 2023, a 
service provided by the County of Simcoe. LinkedIn Learning provides access to over 
16 000 courses and tutorials that range from a few minutes to several hours in length. 
Courses cover a variety of topics, including art, design, web development, business, 
and productivity software (MS Office and others), and are available in seven languages. 
Expert instructors make it easy to learn, and searchable transcripts help you review and 
answer questions. LinkedIn Learning replaces two e-learning services the Library 
previously subscribed to independently, and offers a much larger range of content.  
 
 
 

https://www.innisfilidealab.ca/elearning/


INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF REPORT 

STAFF REPORT NO.: LIB-05-2023 

DATE: May 15, 2023 

TO: INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 

FROM: Erin Scuccimarri, CEO 

SUBJECT: The Economic & Social Value of Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT Staff Report LIB-05-2023 The Economic & Social Value of Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 
dated May 15, 2023 be received as information. 

BACKGROUND 
In the fall of 2022, Brightsail Research, a consulting firm specializing in public libraries, 
was engaged to conduct a return on investment study for the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. 
The consultants presented their findings to the Innisfil Public Library Board on March 20, 
2023. The final report detailing methodology and findings of the study are available for 
review and are attached in Appendix A. 

This is the first economic impact study conducted for the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. Library 
Staff have made recommendations on how this information can be used and identified 
areas for future study. 

ANALYSIS/CONSIDERATION 

Findings 
The study noted that the Library delivers a 544% return on investment. The study was 
completed using a cost benefit analysis, an approach that is used to determine “value-for-
money” and “return on investment” in many public sectors. Total economic impact is the 
sum of:   

• direct spending (that is the Library budget for facilities, staffing, and resources);

• a calculation of a direct benefit, that equates a service with a market value; and

• indirect benefits calculated using an economic multiplier. For example, a single
dollar paid to a staff member is then redistributed in the local economy.

7f.01.01



 

2 
 

 

 

Together these three elements provide an estimate on the total impact on the economy. 
For 2022:  

• Direct spending of the Library was $3.8 million  

• Direct benefits (a market value of collections, programs, reference, research and 
technology access, for example) was $9.2 million  

• Indirect benefits, value created from library spending was over $7 million  
 
Resulting in a total economic impact in excess of $20 million. 
 
Advocacy Tools 
The study results provide concrete evidence of the value that the library brings to the 
community. The study demonstrates that the library is not just a cultural institution, but also 
a sound investment that generates a high return on investment for taxpayers. The findings 
of the Economic Impact Study can be used to justify funding requests to stakeholders, 
including government officials, donors, and patrons. 
 
Opportunities 
During the research and collection of statistics that informed this study, Staff discovered 
additional areas for improved data collection. Staff will be working to implement additional 
metric collection to improve the accuracy of future economic impact studies. Three areas 
of interest identified so far include:  

• Measuring partner activities: the Library hosts numerous social services and 
community organizations that deliver services or programs to Innisfil residents. Staff 
have implemented a plan for shared data collection to better understand the use of 
Library spaces for these purposes; 

• Measuring the impact of Makerspaces: our current statistic collections model for use 
of HackLAB and MediaLAB spaces requires improvement to better capture 
individual uses of the space outside of planned, staff-led programs; 

• Identifying new metrics for social impact: Staff are investigating ways that other 
Libraries and industries measure the social impact of Library services. 

 
Staff continue to evaluate our statistics collection methods, look for opportunities for 
improvements to ensure we are able to deliver the most accurate picture of Library 
services to the community. 



 

3 
 

 

 

 
CONCLUSION 
The Economic & Social Value of Innisfil ideaLAB & Library provides concrete evidence of 
the value that the library brings to the community. By demonstrating that the Library is a 
sound investment that generates a high return on investment for taxpayers. Using an 
evidence-based approach Library Staff and Board can make a strong case for continued or 
increased funding to support library operations and services. 
 
The findings of the economic impact study can be used to support strategic planning 
efforts and guide decision-making by providing data-driven insights into the Library’s 
operations and services. By identifying areas of greatest impact to the community, Staff 
and Board can prioritize investments in services that provide the greatest social and 
economic benefit to residents. This approach can help ensure that the library is delivering 
services that align with the community's needs and priorities. 
 
This study is another tool for Library administration that can be used to ensure that the 
Library continues to deliver high-quality services that are valued by the community and that 
support the Library's mission and goals. 
 
 



The Economic & Social Value of 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 

Final Report 

April 2023 

Prepared by 

Kimberly Silk, Principal 
Rahul Sabu Joseph, Associate 

Brightsail Research 
Brightsail.com 

Appendix A



 1 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Brightsail Research is a boutique consulting firm dedicated to improving 
society through libraries.  

We work with libraries across North America to help them clarify their 
goals and empower them to use data to inform decision-making, support 
advocacy, and communicate impact.  

We value and believe that libraries are an essential public good and have 
an important role in sustaining democracy.  

Our core values – professionalism, social responsibility, and accountability 
– informs our professional practice.    

We are committed to building evaluation capacity in the library sector and 
encourage libraries to integrate program evaluation processes into daily 
practice. To this end, we provide clients with the tools and training to 
“connect the dots” between library activities and community outcomes.  

The land on which Brightsail Research has its headquarters in Toronto, 
Canada has, for thousands of years, been the traditional land of the 
Huron-Wendat, the Seneca, and most recently, the Mississaugas of the 
Credit River. Today, this meeting place is still the home to many 
Indigenous people from across Turtle Island and we are grateful to have 
the opportunity to work on this land. 

 

 

 

http://brightsail.com 

 



 

  

Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................ 3	

METHODOLOGY ............................................................................................................................................ 3	

Economic	Impact	...................................................................................................................................................................................................	3	

Social	Impact	...........................................................................................................................................................................................................	4	

Data	Used	in	this	Study	........................................................................................................................................................................................	5	

FINDINGS ...................................................................................................................................................... 7	

Total	Economic	Impact	........................................................................................................................................................................................	7	

Return	on	Investment	..........................................................................................................................................................................................	8	

Economic	Benefit	per	Resident,	per	Household,	and	per	Cardholder	.................................................................................................	8	

Innisfil	ideaLAB	&	Library’s	Economic	Impact	Compares	Favourably	...............................................................................................	9	

Economic	Value:	Direct	Benefits	...................................................................................................................................................................	10	

Economic	Value:	Direct	Spending	and	Indirect	Benefits	......................................................................................................................	14	

Social	Value:	Strategic	Alignment	.................................................................................................................................................................	16	

Social	Value:	United	Nations	Sustainable	Development	Goals	...........................................................................................................	18	

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY OF TERMS .............................................................................................................. 19	

APPENDIX B: SOURCES ................................................................................................................................. 20	
 

 

 

 

	  



 

 3 

 

Introduction 
Publicly funded memory institutions – galleries, libraries, archives, and museums -- 
continue to be asked to demonstrate their economic value, and to increase efficiency 
with public resources. It is not a uniquely Canadian condition; in her bibliography of 
international library impact studies, Roswitha Poll (Poll, 2018) lists 140 studies assessing 
the financial value of libraries. 

The results of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library’s economic and social impact study 
demonstrates that the programs and services provided by the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 
deliver a strong Return on Investment and make a significant social contribution to the 
Town of Innisfil.  

Methodology 
This study uses two methodologies to measure the economic and social contributions 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library makes to the Town of Innisfil. 

Economic Impact 
The economic impact of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is calculated using cost-benefit 
analysis (CBA), which shows whether the benefits of an activity exceed its costs. The 
CBA approach is used extensively in North America to determine “value-for-money” and 
“return on investment” (ROI) in public expenditures many public sectors, including 
education, healthcare, and libraries. 

Total economic impact is the sum of 3 elements:  

1. Direct Benefits 
Direct benefits are activities that accrue to 
an individual or organization and can be 
reliably estimated. This analysis measured 
the monetary value of library programs 
and services – including collections use, 
programs, reference & database services, 
technology use, and space use – against 
the market cost of replacement for those 
services. For each program and service, 
usage data provided by the Innisfil 
ideaLAB & Library were multiplied by 
conservative market values for comparable 
programs and services provided by other 
organizations. 
 

2. Direct Spending 
Direct spending is the money allocated to the institution and then spent on 
operations, capital, material, wages, and other expenses. In effect, this money 
flows through the institution.  
 

Direct 
Benefits

Direct 
Spending

Indirect 
Benefits

Total 
Economic 
Impact



 

 4 

 

3. Indirect Benefits  
The final element of total economic impact is indirect benefits. These benefits are 
the result of multiplier effects on direct spending; for example, a dollar paid to a 
contractor for a branch renovation is then re-spent in the community. The single 
dollar creates additional benefits across the community. Economic multipliers are 
used to calculate the indirect effects of expenditures on the economy. National and 
provincial multipliers from Statistics Canada range from 1.4 to 2.0. 

Taken together, these three elements provide an estimate of the total impact on the 
economy. 

Return on Investment 
Return on Investment (ROI) is calculated 
by taking the total economic benefits – the 
sum of direct benefits and indirect benefits 
– to the Town of Innisfil and dividing them 
by the cost to provide the service (direct 
spending). 

Social Impact 
Measuring the value of library programs and services in economic terms only tells part of 
the story. Public libraries are committed to improving the quality of life in their 
communities by delivering programs and services that support multiple kinds of literacy, 
life-long learning, and foster community engagement and participation. 

Measuring social impact requires using a framework to provide structure for setting 
targets and measure progress towards those targets. This study uses two authoritative 
social impact frameworks to demonstrate how the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library contributes 
to making Innisfil a better place for residents.  

Strategic Alignment Framework 
At the local level, public libraries demonstrate their social value by showing how library 
activities contribute to the goals of the 
governments to which they belong. 
Demonstrating the connection between 
library activities and municipal goals can 
improve the library-municipality 
relationship and build advocacy with 
government stakeholders. 

 

 

	

𝑫𝒊𝒓𝒆𝒄𝒕	𝑩𝒆𝒏𝒆𝒇𝒊𝒕𝒔 + 𝑰𝒏𝒅𝒊𝒓𝒆𝒄𝒕	𝑩𝒆𝒏𝒆𝒇𝒊𝒕𝒔
𝑳𝒊𝒃𝒓𝒂𝒓𝒚	𝑺𝒑𝒆𝒏𝒅𝒊𝒏𝒈

	
	

= 𝑹𝒆𝒕𝒖𝒓𝒏	𝒐𝒏	𝑰𝒏𝒗𝒆𝒔𝒕𝒎𝒆𝒏𝒕	

Library 
Activities

Library 
Strategic 
Goals

Municipal 
Strategic 
Goals



 

 5 

 

United Nations Sustainable Development Goals Framework 
The United Nations 
Sustainable Development 
Goals (UN SDGs) were 
designed by the United 
Nations to be a “blueprint to 
achieve a better and more 
sustainable future for all.” 
The 17 UN SDGs were 
adopted by all United Nations 
Member States – including 
Canada – in 2015 as a 
universal call to action to end 
poverty, protect the planet 
and ensure that all people 
enjoy peace and prosperity 
by 2030. 

Libraries are key partners in 
this global work. Achieving all 
the Goals depends on libraries and the services they provide. The International 
Federation of Library Associations (IFLA) has been actively involved with the creation 
and promotion of the UN 2030 SDGs. They have advocated for the inclusion of access to 
information, safeguarding of cultural heritage, universal literacy, and access to 
information and communication technologies in the framework.  

Libraries play a significant role in helping to provide knowledge, understanding, and 
resources to our communities. By providing information at the local level, libraries 
provide resources, skills, and tangible ways to achieve the goals of the SDGs. 

The American Library Association (ALA) collaborated with IFLA to develop tools, support, 
and guidance to help libraries demonstrate how they contribute to the UN SDGs. Doing 
this work and connecting it to the SDGs makes it easier to advocate for libraries at the 
local, regional, and provincial level. 

Data Used in this Study 
Brightsail Research collaborated with the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library over a five-month 
period to gather and analyze data and information on budgets, spending, meeting room 
use, and on the volume of programs and services provided by the Innisfil ideaLAB and 
Library to the residents of Innisfil. The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library provided data, including 
performance measurements that are publicly reported annually, as well as additional 
information gathered specifically for this report. All data are from 2022. 

The Value of Collections 
Some library economic value studies apply a 20% discount to the value of collections to 
account for the difference between borrowing and owning an item. Other studies do not 
apply this discount since the borrower is receiving 100% of the value of the item during 
the lending period. This study uses 100% of collection value.  



 

 6 

 

Calculating Indirect Benefits 
Economic multipliers are used to calculate the indirect effects of expenditures on the 
economy. National and provincial multipliers from Statistics Canada range from 1.4 to 
2.0. This study uses a multiplier of 2.0 to calculate the indirect benefits.  

  



 

 7 

 

Findings 
Total Economic Impact 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library creates over $20.6 million in total economic impact. 

 
 

  



 

 8 

 

Return on Investment 
Every $1 invested Innisfil ideaLAB & Library produces $5.44 of economic value. 

 
 

Economic Benefit per Resident, per Household, and per Cardholder 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library delivers value at multiple levels: 

• $454 per resident 
• $1,145 per household 
• $1,267 per cardholder.  

 
 

 

  

Economic 
Benefit per 
Resident

$454

Economic 
Benefit per 
Household

$1,145

Economic 
Benefit per 
Cardholder

$1,267



 

 9 

 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library’s Economic Impact Compares Favourably 

Library Study Year 
Census 

Population 
# Branches 

Return on $1 
Invested 

Toronto Public Library 2013 2,615,060 98 $5.63 

Halton Hills Public Library 2014 59,008 2 $3.96 

Milton Public Library 2014 84,362 2 $5.67 

Pickering Public Library 2014 88,721 3 $5.85 

Stratford Public Library 2015 30,886 1 $5.63 

Kawartha Lakes Public Library 2015 73,214 15 $7.05 

London Public Library 2015 366,151 16 $6.68 

Ottawa Public Library 2016 883,391 33 $5.17 

Newmarket Public Library 2016 79,978 1 $7.85 

Markham Public Library 2017 301,709 8 $5.97 

Bradford West Gwillimbury 2018 35,325 1 $4.65 

Woodstock Public Library 2018 40,404 1 $7.20 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 2023 45,537 3 $5.44 

  

 

  



 

 10 

 

Economic Value: Direct Benefits 
This study analysed the five main categories of Innisfil ideaLAB and Library programs 
and services: 

• Collection Use - Books, periodicals, audio books, CDs, DVDs, Blu-rays, video 
games, digital materials, and items in the Library of Things.  

• Programs – For children, teens, adults, and seniors to support literacy, culture, 
workforce development, and lifelong learning. 

• Space – Used by the community for meetings and collaboration. 
• Reference & Database Services – To support career development, eLearning, 

personal research, and business development. 
• Technology – Access to computer technology and the Internet to support career 

development, eLearning, personal research, and business development. 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library programs and services delivered an economic benefit of 
$9,280,367 in 2022. 

Direct Benefits 
Collection Use Volume Total Value 
Circulation  228,035  $            4,206,857  
In-house Use 213,000  $            4,473,000  
TOTAL COLLECTION USE 441,035  $            8,679,857  
Programs # of Attendees Total Value 
All Programs  15,170  $          170,575.00  
TOTAL PROGRAMS 15,170  $          170,575.00  
Space Use # of Bookings Total Value 
All Bookings 596  $            17,782.25  
TOTAL SPACE USE 596  $            17,782.25  
Reference & Database Services  Amount Total Value 
Total Reference Queries 4,161  $                 62,415  
eLearning Usage 2,112  $                   8,448  
Licensed Web Databases Searches 6,359  $               158,975  
TOTAL REFERENCE & DB 12,632  $               229,838  
Technology Access # of sessions* Total Value 
Total Workstation Usage & Wi-Fi Usage 72,926  $               182,315  
TOTAL TECHNOLOGY ACCESS 72,926  $               182,315  
Total Direct Benefits    $            9,280,367  

*A single technology session is 60 minutes. 
 
  



 

 11 

 

Collection Use 
Market values for circulated items are derived from retail prices sourced from Amazon.ca 
and Indigo Books & Music. Since items range in price depending on format and 
audience, conservative values are used. This study uses 100% of collection value.  

Circulated items delivered an economic benefit of $4,206,857 in 2022. 

Circulated Collection Use 
  Loans Retail Value Total Value 
Books-Adult 52,381 $23.72  $                    1,242,477  
Books-Young Adult 4,569 $24.99  $                        114,179  
Books-Children 63,850 $15.00  $                        957,750  
TOTAL BOOKS 120,800    $                   2,314,407  
Periodicals 4,697 $8.00  $                          37,576  
TOTAL PERIODICALS 4,697    $                          37,576  
Audiobooks-Adult 2,499 $14.49  $                          36,211  
Audiobooks-Children  72 $20.00  $                             1,440  
TOTAL AUDIOBOOKS 2,571    $                          37,651  
Adult - Video - DVDs/CD 12,238 $16.99  $                        207,924  
Children’s - Video - DVDs/CD 5,000 $19.89  $                          99,450  
Adult - Video - Blu-ray 1,518 $19.30  $                          29,297  
Children’s - Video - Blu-ray 272 $13.00  $                             3,536  
TOTAL VIDEOS 19,028    $                       340,207  
Video Games 5,276 $55.00  $                        290,180  
TOTAL VIDEO GAMES 5,276    $                       290,180  
Digital - eBooks 39,596 $12.50  $                        494,950  
Digital - eVideo 2,669 $5.00  $                          13,345  
Digital - eAudiobooks 17,953 $30.00  $                        538,590  
Digital - eMagazines 15,070 $5.00  $                          75,350  
TOTAL DIGITAL 75,288    $                   1,122,235  
LOT-Assistive Technology 49 $18.00  $                                882  
LOT-Coding and Robots 101 $70.00  $                             7,070  
LOT-Digital Media Lab 17 $50.00  $                                850  
LOT-Games 244 $40.00  $                             9,760  
LOT-Lendable Tech 111 $450.00  $                          49,950  
LOT-Outdoor & Leisure 156 $40.00  $                             6,240  
LOT-Toys and Instruments 241 $30.00  $                             7,230  
LOT-hackLAB Kits 2,027 $10.00  $                          20,270  
TOTAL LIBRARY OF THINGS 2,946    $                       102,252  
Total Circulation 228,035    $         4,206,857  

 

 



 

 12 

 

In-house Use of Materials 
In-house use is the use of items in the library without them having to check them out. 
Market values for items used in-house are derived from retail prices sourced from 
Amazon.ca and Indigo Books & Music. Since items range in price depending on format 
and audience, conservative values are used. This study uses 100% of collection value.  

Items used in-house delivered an economic benefit of $4,473,000 in 2022. 

In-House Collection Use 
  In-House Use Retail Value Total Value 
Total in-house materials used 213,000 $21.00  $              4,473,000  

Programs 
Market values for programs are derived from comparable market prices sourced from 
comparable programs offered in Innisfil, and in Barrie when a comparable program isn’t 
available in Innisfil. As each item had a price range, in each case the conservative value 
is used. 

Programs provided an economic benefit of $170,575 in 2022. 

Programs 
 # of Attendees Market Value Total Value 

Preschool Programs 5,636 $           15.00 $            84,540 
Children's Programs 3,280 $             8.00 $            26,240 
Teen Programs 610 $             5.50 $              3,355 
Adult/Senior Programs 5,644 $           10.00 $            56,440 
Total Programs 15,170  $          170,575 

Space Use 
Innisfil has a modestly sized town centre and, as a result, there are few places for 
people to meet. A wide range of local and regional community services depend on 
partnerships with Innisfil ideaLAB & 
Library to deliver their services locally. 
Some partners pay the rental fee, 
some pay a reduced fee, and some 
use the space free of charge. Long-
term partners include: 

• Victorian Order of Nurses (VON)  
• EarlyON Child & Family Centres 
• Canadian Mental Health 

Association (CMHA) 
• Youth Haven 
• YMCA Settlement Services 
• John Howard Society 
• Elizabeth Fry Society 
• Public Health 
• Elections Ontario/Canada 



 

 13 

 

In 2022, local and regional community partners used the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library’s 
meeting spaces 596 times, a value of $17,782.  

In addition, when local and regional community partners used the library’s meeting 
space, Innisfil residents save time and reduce mileage costs. 

• $13.87 per trip to Barrie 
• $22.44 per trip to Alliston 

The dollar value of space use and the time and mileage saved does not include the value 
of the service being delivered by partners using the space.  

Reference Services & Database Use 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library staff provide expert research and reference services on-site, 
by email and over the phone. For the purposes of valuating the average reference 
question, assume each reference question requires 10 minutes to understand, research, 
and provide the answer, equal to a value of $15.  

The value of licensed reference databases and eLearning resources is based on the 
consumer pricing posted on these services’ websites for annual subscriptions. The value 
of $4 per eLearning session and $25 per search is consistent with comparable studies 
consulted for this report. 

Reference services and database use provided an economic benefit of $229,838 in 2022. 

Reference Services & Database Use 
 Use Market Value Total Value 
In-House Reference Usage 4,161 $         15.00 $          62,415 
eLearning Usage 2,112 $           4.00 $            8,448 
# of searches in licensed databases 6,359 $         25.00 $        158,975 
Total Reference Services 12,632  $        229,838 

Technology Access 
In 2022, Innisfil ideaLAB & Library visitors logged a total of 3,178 computer workstation 
sessions and 69,748 Wi-Fi sessions, with each session lasting just under one hour. 
Based on market research looking at the cost of a cup of coffee in local café with 
Internet access, assume a market value of $2.50 per hour. 

Technology access provided an economic benefit of $182,315 in 2022. 

Technology Access 
 # of sessions Market Value Total Value 

Workstation usage 3,178 $                2.50 $             7,945 
Wi-Fi Usage 69,748 $                2.50 $         174,370 
Total Technology Access 72,926  $         182,315 

 

  



 

 14 

 

Economic Value: Direct Spending and Indirect Benefits 
Determining the economic impact of an institution includes the analysis of direct and 
indirect benefits generated in the economy as a result of the institution’s activities. 
Direct spending includes items such as institutional spending and wages, which directly 
affect the local economy. Indirect benefits, also known as the multiplier effect, include 
the re-spending of dollars within the local economy, which increases the total value of 
the direct spending. 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library stimulates the local economy through direct spending on goods 
and services and staff wages, which then result in indirect re-spending of dollars in the 
local economy. Direct and indirect benefits include money spent on: 

• Library operations 
• Library capital 
• Library employment 
• Library materials 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library provided the data for the capital and operating expenditures 
used in this analysis to calculate the direct spending. This study uses a multiplier of 2.0 
to calculate the indirect benefits. 

Library Operations Spending 
Operations spending (spending on items other than library materials, salaries, wages, 
and benefits) offer a benefit to the area which it serves. Contractors employ residents, 
contribute to the economy, pay taxes, as well as create an induced benefit to the 
businesses those employees frequent. Calculation of geography was done by office 
location of vendor. 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library spends the majority of its operational budget within Simcoe 
County. The expenditures below exclude salaries and library materials. 

Operations Spending by Location 
 Direct Spend % share Multiplier 2.0 
Simcoe County $    246,779 82.6% $       493,559 
Rest of Ontario $      35,398 11.8% $         70,796 
Canada $        1,931 0.6% $           3,862 
International $      14,803 5.0% $         29,606 

 

  



 

 15 

 

Library Capital Spending 
Library capital spending includes buildings and renovations and investment in new 
technology. The majority (65%) of Innisfil ideaLAB & Library’s capital budget is spent 
within Ontario. 

Capital Spending by Location 
 Direct Spend % share Multiplier 2.0 

Simcoe County $      12,416 8% $                      24,833 
Rest of Ontario $      85,424 57% $                    170,849 
Canada $        4,967 3% $                        9,933 
International $      47,182 32% $                      94,364 

Library Employment Spending  
Annual salary costs include full time and part time wages and benefit costs. The majority 
of Innisfil ideaLAB & Library employees live in the Town of Innisfil, and all employees 
live in Simcoe County. Wage impacts are multiplied as staff purchase goods and services 
within the community, providing revenue to those businesses and employees. 

Library Employment Spending 
 Annual Salaries Multiplier 2.0 

Total Salaries - All Employees $      2,867,739 $                 5,735,478 

Library Materials Spending 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library spends almost 20% of its library materials budget within 
Simcoe County, and the majority within Ontario. We applied a multiplier of 2.0 to 
demonstrate economic impact. 

Materials Spending by Location 
  Direct Spend % share Multiplier 2.0 

Simcoe County $      92,718 19% $       185,435 
Rest of Ontario $    268,393 55% $       536,786 
Canada $      14,640 3% $         29,279 
International $    112,237 23% $       224,474 

 

 

  



 

 16 

 

Social Value: Strategic Alignment 
The Town of Innisfil’s Community Strategic Plan Innovative Innisfil 2030 (Town of 
Innisfil, 2021) focuses on three strategic priorities: 

• Plan for and manage growth, actively engage residents, attract, and support 
business, and promote economic prosperity. 

• Ensure that opportunities exist for residents, businesses, and organizations to 
connect physically, socially, culturally, and digitally. 

• Embrace the principles of sustainability to actively protect, maintain, and enhance 
the environment, assets, and amenities that the community depends on. 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is a key partner that contributes to achieving the Town’s 
strategic priorities.   

 
For example, the Library: 

• Attracts and promotes economic prosperity by offering free access to the Internet, 
a wide range of online learning opportunities, and technology to support emerging 
entrepreneurs.  

• Connects individuals with each other and with technology, in-person and online, 
and supports civic engagement.  

• Demonstrates sustainability through multiple environmentally focused programs 
that promote awareness about protecting our natural resources.  

• Partners with community groups and social service agencies so they can deliver 
their services locally, use publicly funded space efficiently, and reduce driving time 
and associated fuel costs.    

 



 

 17 

 

 Innisfil Community Strategic Plan 2030 

 Grow Connect Sustain 
Li

br
ar

y 
Ac

tiv
iti

es
 

Innisfil residents logged 2,112 
eLearning sessions, an 

economic value of $8,448. 

Innisfil residents logged 3,178 
computer sessions and 69,748 

Wi-Fi sessions, an economic value 
of $182,315. 

The seed library promotes 
environmental sustainability, 
genetic diversity, and helps 

people learn to grow their own 
food. 

Over 5,600 Innisfil adults 
participated in programs to be 
creative, engage with others, 
and learn something new, an 
economic value of $56,440. 

Over 9,500 Innisfil kids 
participated in fun and 

educational library programs, an 
economic value of $114,135. 

Pollinator gardens and award-
winning monarch butterfly 

rearing programs encourage 
scientific curiosity and teach 
principles of sustainability. 

 
Innisfil citizens depend on the 

library to vote in municipal, 
provincial, and federal elections. 

Public & community services use 
the library connect with clients, 
an efficient use of public dollars 
in a welcoming and safe place. 

 

Partnerships with community & 
social services in Simcoe County 
provides residents with the help 
they need in their community. 

The Cookstown branch is LEED 
certified Silver. It is heated and 
cooled using the underground 

geothermal loop system 
installed under the field 
adjacent to the branch.  

 
The library meets the 

community's demand for meeting 
space in a welcoming place for all. 

 

 

 

  



 

 18 

 

Social Value: United Nations Sustainable Development Goals 
Innisfil ideaLAB & Library contributes to the UN SDGs by being a place that is open to 
all, by delivering programs to reduce social isolation, promoting education and 
awareness about environmental issues, offering free access to authoritative information, 
and supporting lifelong learning. 

 



 

 19 

 

Appendix A: Glossary of Terms  
Direct Benefits Activities that accrue to an individual or organization and can 

be assigned a reliable, specific financial value. The value may 
be derived in a variety of different ways and a range of 
values may be possible. 

Direct Spending Items such as institutional spending and wages, which have 
a direct impact on the local economy. 

Indirect Benefits Also known as the multiplier effect, is the benefit created by 
the re-spending of dollars within the local economy 
generated by the direct spending. 

In-house Use In-house use is the use of items in the library without them 
having to check them out. 

Return on Investment Also known as ROI, is calculated by taking the total economic 
benefits – the sum of direct benefits and indirect benefits – 
and dividing that sum by the cost to run the service (direct 
spending). 

Social Impact A significant, positive change that addresses a pressing 
social challenge. 

Creating social impact is the result of a deliberate set of 
activities with a goal matching this definition. 

Total Economic Impact The sum of direct benefits, indirect benefits, and direct 
spending. It is the combined impact across the entire 
economy. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 20 

 

Appendix B: Sources 
American Library Association. (2020, April 20). ALA Task Force on United Nations 2030 

Sustainable Development Goals [Text]. About ALA. 

http://www.ala.org/aboutala/ala-task-force-united-nations-2030-sustainable-

development-goals 

Poll, R. (2018). Bibliography: Impact and Outcome of Libraries. International Federation 

of Library Associations. https://www.ifla.org/files/assets/statistics-and-

evaluation/publications/bibliography_impact_and_outcome_2018.pdf 

Town of Innisfil. (2021). Community Strategic Plan: Innovative Innisfil 2030. Town of 

Innisfil. https://innisfil.ca/en/my-government/community-strategic-plan-

innovative-innisfil-2030.aspx 

 

 

 

 



Policy Changes Summary 
 

 
8a. EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 

• Updated appendices to include current and enhanced (carpooling only) 

kilometer reimbursement rate. 

 

8b.  OPERATING AND TECHNOLOGY – Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation 

Compliance Policy #2023-12 

• Minor wording changes to section 18 regarding express consent 

• Audit frequency changed from every six months to annually 

  

8c.  OPERATING AND TECHNOLOGY – Rules of Conduct Policy #2023-13 

• Wording changes to use more positive phrasing 

• Definitions added for Suspension and Weapon 

• Additions to the Rules of Conduct: 

o Any behaviour which disrupts or prevents others from accessing/using 

Library services, including verbal and physical intimidation and 

harassment, is not permitted 

o Bringing items onto Library premises that could disrupt others’ ability 

to use Library services or could cause damage to the facility or 

equipment is not permitted 

o Sleeping in the Library is not permitted 

• Additional paragraph: Staff may issue a Notice of Trespass  Pursuant to 

the Trespass to Property Act, RSO 1990, c. T.21, S.3.  If deemed 

necessary,  South Simcoe Police Service may be called to aid in the 

enforcement of this Policy and/or to distribute a Notice of Trespass order. 

Trespassing while under an active Notice of Trespass will not be tolerated 

and may result in an extension of the original trespass notice time period. 

• Addition of section regarding Suspension of Library Privileges 

 



SUBJECT:     EMPLOYMENT - MILEAGE POLICY  

Policy No:  E-2023-11

Date:  May 15, 2023

Review Date: May 2027 

Pages: 4 (Including Appendices)  

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish consistent parameters for mileage 
reimbursement requests related to Library Board members and Staff conducting library 
business. 

POLICY 
Application 
This policy applies to all employees who drive their own vehicle on Library business and 
who are eligible to be reimbursed for such driving in accordance with this policy. It also 
applies to members of the Library Board using their own vehicle when conducting library 
business outside of the municipality. 

Guidelines 
Whenever an employee/Board Member is required and authorized to use their own 
vehicle on business for the Library, the Library shall pay the employee/Board Member 
an allowance based on the number of kilometres travelled while conducting Library 
business.  Accurate records, including destinations, dates and distances driven, shall be 
kept and a properly completed Mileage Reimbursement Claim Form (Appendix 1 or 
Appendix 2) must be submitted to receive reimbursement. 

When the travel destination point is closer to the employee’s home than the Central 
Branch (currently Lakeshore Branch), the shorter distance shall be used for mileage 
calculations.  

8a.01.01 



EMPLOYMENT – Mileage Policy #E-2023-XX                                           Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
Mileage rates will be reviewed and recommended by the CEO and will be established 
based on the mileage rates set by the Town of Innisfil.  Staff/Board Members, who 
carpool to external business meetings/workshops will be reimbursed for mileage at an 
enhanced rate as determined and reviewed annually by the Board (Appendix 2). 
 
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 – Mileage Reimbursement Claim Form 
Appendix 2 – Mileage Reimbursement Claim Form (for carpooling only) 
 
 
Related Policies 
Employment – Education, Training & Development (Including Reimbursement of 
Expenses) Policy 
Carpool Management Policy 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, May 15, 2023, 
Motion Number: 2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #E-2019-14, approved May 21, 2019, Motion #2019.43; and Policy 
#E-2015-10, approved September 21, 2015, Motion #2015.73;  & 
Policy #E-2011-01, approved February 22, 2011, Motion #2011.12; & 
Policy #2008-04, approved February 19, 2008, Motion #2008.10; & 
Policy #2005-02, approved September 12, 2005, Motion #2005.42. 
 
 
 
 
 



Employment - Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 - Appendix 1 Corporation of the Town of Innisfil

2101 Innisfil Beach Road

Innisfil, Ontario

L9S 1A1

Telephone (705) 436-3710

Fax (705) 436-7120

Employee Name

Date # of Kms. Job # Activity # Object # Amount

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

Total Kilometers -                   Total Amount -                             

Submitted by: Approved by: *****

Employee Signature Departmental Authorized Signature

Kilometre Reimbursement

Kilometre Travelled Information (at .60  per km)

Work Order #Destination & Purpose

Business use of personal vehicle as of October 1, 2022 will be paid

at $0.60 per kilometer. Any mileage incurred prior to October 1,

2022 will be paid at $0.57 per kilometer.

FS-03 Jul 1/08 Version



Employment - Mileage Policy #E-2023-11 - Appendix 2

Innisfil Public Library Submission Date: __________________________________________ Corporation of the Town of Innisfil

967 Innisfil Beach Road 2101 Innisfil Beach Road

Innisfil, Ontario Employee Name: Innisfil, Ontario

L9S 1V3 L9S 1A1

705-431-7410 Telephone (705) 436-3710

Date # of Kms. Job # Activity # Object # Amount

740100 74100 7320 -                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

Total Kilometers -                   Total Amount -                             

Submitted by: Approved by: *****

Employee Signature CEO Form #HR-02CP-2019

Mileage is paid at $0.60 per kilometer (effective October 1, 2022). If

2 or more staff carpool to an approved event, an enhanced rate of

$0.65 per kilometer may be used for the calculation.

Mileage Reimbursement Claim Form 
(effective May 2023) Use for CARPOOLING ONLY.

Kilometre Information

Work Order #Destination & Purpose



SUBJECT: CANADA’S ANTI-SPAM LEGISLATION COMPLIANCE POLICY 

Policy No.: 2023-12   

Date:     May 15, 2023   

Review Date: May 2027   

Pages:   9 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of Canada’s AntiSpam Legislation (CASL) is to prevent Canadians from 
receiving unwanted commercial electronic messages, especially those sent out in bulk 
to multiple recipients. These types of messages are known as “junk mail” or “spam”.  

Canada’s AntiSpam Legislation came into force on July 1, 2014. The Innisfil ideaLAB & 
Library is committed to complying with CASL and its requirements. Following is the 
Library’s CASL compliance policy (the “Policy”). 

POLICY 
Application 
This policy applies to all Staff, Board Members, Volunteers, and any other Person(s) 
who communicate(s) on the Library’s behalf. 

Definitions 
“Canada’s AntiSpam Legislation” or “CASL”  means the following Act and 
Regulations: 

i. An Act to promote the efficiency and adaptability of the Canadian economy by
regulating certain activities that discourage reliance on electronic means of
carrying out commercial activities, and to amend the Canadian Radiotelevision
and Telecommunications Commission Act, the Competition Act, the Personal
Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act and the
Telecommunications Act, S.C. 2010, c. 23 (the “Act”);

8b.01.01



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 2 of 9 

ii. Electronic Commerce Protection Regulations (CRTC), SOR/201236; and 
iii. Electronic Commerce Protection Regulations (Industry Canada), 

SOR/2013221. 
 
 
“Commercial Electronic Message” or “CEM” means: an Electronic Message that, 
directly or indirectly, encourages participation in the Library’s commercial 
activities, and/or in the commercial activities of a Person other than the Library. 
 
“Computer Program”  means data representing instructions or statements that, when 
executed in a Computer System, causes the Computer System to perform a function. 
Examples of Computer Programs include, but are not limited to: 

a) software; 
b) applications (apps); 
c) games; 
d) eBooks; 
e) any upgrades or updates to an existing Computer Program; and 
f) any other computer code that meets the above description. 
 

“Computer System”  means any device or a group of interconnected or related 
devices one or more of which: 

a) contains Computer Programs or other data, and 
b) pursuant to Computer Programs, 
  i. performs logic and control, and 
  ii.  may perform any other function. 

Examples of a Computer System include, but are not limited to: a computer; a server; a 
hard drive; a mobile telephone; a tablet. 
 
“Electronic Message” or “EM”  means a message sent by electronic means to an 
Electronic Address, including, but not limited to messages sent: 

a) by email; 
b) by text message; 
c) by instant message; and 
d) via a social media account. 

  
 For greater certainty, an EM does not include messages: 

i. sent via posted mail; 
ii. sent via fax; 
iii. communicated via a two-way voice conversation; 
iv. communicated via voicemail to a telephone account; and/or 
v. posted or published on a website (but not sent to an Electronic 

address). 
  



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 3 of 9 

 
“Electronic Address”  means an address used in connection with the transmission of 
an Electronic Message to: 

a) an email account; 
b) an instant messaging account; 
c) a telephone account; 
d) a social media account; or  
e) any similar account. 

 
“Exemptions” – means the exemptions to the requirements of subsections 6(1) and/or 
6(2) of the Act, as prescribed in CASL. 
 
“Express Consent”  means the explicit and/or expressed communication by a Person 
that the Person wishes to receive EMs from the Library. 
 
“Implied Consent”  means the existence of the requirements prescribed in Part V 
herein. 
 
“Person”  means an individual, partnership, corporation, organization, association, 
trustee, administrator, executor, liquidator of a succession, receiver or legal 
representative. 
 
“Special Functions” means a Computer Program that is intended to cause the 
following functions, contrary to the reasonable expectations of the user/owner of the 
Computer System: 

a) collecting personal information stored on the Computer System; 
b) interfering with the owner’s or an authorized user’s control of the Computer 
   System; 
c) changing or interfering with settings, preferences, or commands already 
   installed or stored on the Computer System without the knowledge of the   
    owner or an authorized user of the Computer System; 
d) changing or interfering with data that is stored on the Computer System in a 
    manner that obstructs, interrupts or interferes with lawful access to or use of 
    that data by the owner or an authorized user of the Computer System; 
e) causing the computer system to communicate with another Computer 
    System, or other device, without the authorization of the owner or an  
    authorized user of the computer system; 
f)  installing a Computer Program that may be activated by a third party without    
    the knowledge of the owner or an authorized user of the Computer System. 

 
“Third Party”  means a Person who is not the CEO, a director, a manager, an officer 
or employee of the Library, who sends EMs that promote, advertise, market, or 
otherwise encourage participation in the Library’s activities. 
  



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 4 of 9 

Guidelines 
PART I  GENERAL 

1. The Library will appoint Staff Members who are responsible for managing the 
     implementation of this Policy. 
 

2. Notwithstanding anything in this Policy, at the Library’s sole and absolute 
discretion, the Library may rely on any one or more of the Exemptions, 
provided by CASL. A determination as to when a situation would be subject to 
any one of the Exemptions shall be made by the Library on a caseby-case 
basis. 
 

3. At its sole and absolute discretion, the Library may at any time revise this 
Policy to ensure that the Library remains in compliance with CASL. 

 
PART II – ELECTRONIC ADDRESSES 

4. No Person shall collect an Electronic Address for the purposes of sending   
Electronic Messages to the Person who owns that Electronic Address on 
behalf of the Library, without having first obtained the consent of that Person. 
 

5. All the Electronic Addresses collected by or on behalf of the Library shall be 
entered, stored and managed by the Library through its Integrated Library 
System (“ILS”) and Customer Relationship Management database (CRM).  
 

6. All individuals who obtain and/or collect Electronic Addresses on behalf of the 
Library must enter those Electronic Addresses into the ILS and the CRM, in 
accordance with the Library’s policies and procedures respecting collection of 
personal information. 

 
PART III – ELECTRONIC MESSAGES 

7. No EM shall be sent by or on behalf of the Library, in the course of carrying 
on the Library’s activities, unless the recipient of the EM has provided his or 
her Express Consent or Implied Consent to receive EMs from the Library (as 
particularly prescribed at Parts IV and V of this Policy). 
 

8. EMs sent by or on behalf of the Library in the course of carrying on the       
Library’s activities may only be sent to Electronic Addresses that have been  
entered into the ILS. 
 

9. All EMs sent by or on behalf of the Library in the course of carrying on the 
Library’s activities must include the following information: 

a) the Library’s name and mailing address; 
b) at least one of the following: 

i. Library’s email address; 
ii. Library telephone number; 
iii. Library website; and 

c) the Library’s unsubscribe mechanism, as prescribed at Part VI herein.  



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 5 of 9 

          10. EMs sent: 
a) between employees of the Library; and/or 
b) from employees of the Library to employees of other libraries, 

          shall concern the activities of the Library. 
 
          11. If an employee of the Library sends an EM to another employee of the Library  

     or to an employee of another library, which promotes, markets, advertises or    
      otherwise encourages participation in commercial activity of a Person other  
     than the Library, the sending employee must: 

a) use their personal Electronic Address and not an Electronic Address 
owned by the Library to send the EM; and 

b) obtain the Express Consent of the recipient employee prior to sending  
the EM. 

 
PART IV – EXPRESS CONSENT 
          12. The Library shall endeavour to obtain Express Consent from all Persons to  
     whom it sends EMs, at all reasonable opportunities. 
 

13. Express Consents provided to the Library shall be entered into the Library’s  
 ILS and CRM in accordance with the Library’s procedures, and shall specify: 

a) the date and time the Express Consent was given; 
b) the types of EMs the Person has consented to; and 
c) the manner in which the Express Consent was given. 
 

         14. All requests for Express Consent made by or on behalf of the Library in writing  
    (whether electronic or in hard copy format), must include the following: 

a) a request that the recipient consents to receive EMs from the Library; 
b) the purpose for which the consent is being sought (e.g., for receiving    
    EMs; for installing a particular Computer Program); 
c) the Library’s name and mailing address; 
d) at least one of the following: 

i. the Library’s email address; 
ii. the Library’s telephone number; 
iii. the Library’s website; and 

e) a statement that consent may be withdrawn at any time. 
 

         15. Express Consent shall not be sought by or on behalf of the Library by sending  
    an Electronic Message to an Electronic Address, unless the Library has     
     Implied Consent (as prescribed at Part V herein) from the Person to whom  
     the Electronic Message is being sent. 
 

         16. All requests for Express Consent made in writing shall not include prechecked  
    boxes. 
 
         17. All Express Consents provided to the Library in hard copy format shall be  
               scanned and saved in the CRM. 



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 6 of 9 

 
         18. All requests for Express Consents made by or on behalf of the Library orally  
   shall follow the following procedure: 

a) The individual requesting the consent shall disclose to the Person from    
     whom the consent is being sought: 

   i. that the consent is being sought on behalf of the Library; 
   ii. the purpose for which the consent is being sought (e.g., for       
       receiving EMs; for installing a particular Computer Program); 

   iii. the Library’s mailing address;   
   iv. at least one of the  

● the Library’s email address; 
● the Library’s telephone number; 
● the Library’s website, and  

                     v. that the Person may withdraw the consent at any time. 
b) Express consent must be obtained through a positive action by the 

recipient, such as checking a box on a web form or providing their 
email address in writing. 

c) Library Staff may obtain express consent verbally in person or via 
telephone and confirm the express consent in the Library’s ILS and/or 
CRM database. 

d) Library Staff may send an electronic message seeking confirmation of 

express consent in accordance with Library procedures.                                

      
          19. Any individual who obtains Express Consent on behalf of the Library shall      
                enter the Express Consent into the CRM as soon as is reasonably  
                possible, in accordance with the Library’s procedures.      
 
PART V – IMPLIED CONSENT 
          20. The Library has Implied Consent to send EMs to the following: 
  a) Persons who are current, active cardholders of the Library; 
  b) Persons who were cardholders of the Library but who ceased to be  
                          cardholders in the 24 months preceding the date of the sending of the  
      EM; 
          c) Persons who entered into a financial transaction with the Library in the  
              24 months preceding the date of the sending of the EM. This can be 
      confirmed in the account history prior to the sending of the EM. 
 
PART VI – UNSUBSCRIBE MECHANISM 
           21. All EMs sent by or on behalf of the Library in the course of carrying out  
                  Library activities shall include a mechanism by which the Person receiving  
      the EMs may unsubscribe (i.e., optout) from receiving Electronic Messages  
      from the Library (the “Unsubscribe Mechanism”).  
 

22. The “Unsubscribe Mechanism” shall be prominently displayed in the body of  
      all EMs sent by or on behalf of the Library. 

 



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 7 of 9 

           23. All requests to Unsubscribe shall be entered into the Library’s ILS and CRM  
      as soon as possible, in accordance with the Library’s procedures. 
 
           24. No EMs shall be sent by or on behalf the Library to any Person who made a  
                 request to Unsubscribe, ten days after the request was made and thereafter,  
                 unless the Person provides his or her Express Consent to receive EMs from    
                 the Library, or unless the EM meets one of the Exemptions (to be determined  
                 by the Library on a case-by-case basis). 
 
PART VII – THIRD PARTIES 
           25. The Library requires that all Third Parties have Express Consent or Implied     
                  Consent (as prescribed at Parts IV and V of this Policy) to receive EMs from  
                  the Library, from the Persons to whom the EMs are sent, prior to the  
                  sending of the EMs. 
 

26. The Library shall not be held liable for any and all EMs sent by Third Parties  
       that are not sent in compliance with this Policy. 
 
27. All Third Parties agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Library  
      and its directors, officers, employees, agents and trustees, from and against  
      any and all complaints, claims, actions or demands resulting from, and/or  
      arising out of, the Third Parties’ breach of this Policy, including, but not  
      limited to, for any and all regulatory proceedings, warrants, preservation  
      demands, disclosure requests, compliance notices, administrative monetary  
      penalties, fines, damages, injunctive relief, class actions, legal fees, expert  
      fees and disbursements. 
 
28. At its sole and absolute discretion, the Library may, from time to time, enter  
      into agreements and/or arrangements with Third Parties that may not  
      necessarily be in compliance with this Policy, but which ensure the Library's  
      compliance with CASL. 
 
29. Notwithstanding anything in this Policy, at its sole and absolute discretion, the  
      Library may rely on one or more of the Exemptions for EMs sent by Third  
      Parties. A determination of whether a particular EM sent by a Third Party is  
      subject to an Exemption will be made by the Library on a casebycase basis. 

 
PART VIII – COMPUTER PROGRAMS 

30. In the course of conducting Library activities, no Person shall cause a  
      Computer Program to be installed on a Computer System, unless that Person 
      first obtains the Express Consent of the owner or authorized user of the  
      Computer System to install the Computer Program, on behalf of the Library. 

  



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 8 of 9 

 
31. Notwithstanding section 31, there is no requirement to obtain Express    
      Consent to install the following Computer Program on behalf of the Library: 

a) a cookie; 
b) HTML code; 
c) Java Script; and 
d) an operating system. 

 
32. When seeking Express Consent to install a Computer Program on behalf of  
      the Library, the Person seeking the consent shall disclose to the Person from  
      whom consent is being sought, clearly and simply, the function and purpose  
      of the Computer Program being installed. 

 
33. If the Computer Program being installed on behalf of the Library is intended  
      to perform a Special Function(s), the Person seeking consent on behalf of the  
      Library, must, prominently, clearly, simply, and separate and apart from any  
      other requests for consent, describe the Special Function(s), including their  
      nature and purpose and their impact on the operation of the Computer  
      System. 
 

PART IX – USE OF THE LIBRARY’S COMPUTERS / INTERNET CONNECTION 
34. Any Person who uses: 

a) a Computer System owned, operated and/or controlled by the Library;  
    and/or 
b) an Internet connection owned, controlled and/or provided by the Library  
    (including any wireless connection), must carry out his or her activities  
    in a manner that is compliant with CASL. 

 
35. Any Person who contravenes this Part shall defend, indemnify and hold  
    harmless the Library and its CEO, its directors, managers, officers,  
    employees, volunteers, agents and trustees, from and against any and all   
    complaints, claims, actions or demands resulting from, and/or arising out of,  
    that Person’s actions, including, but not limited to, for any and all regulatory  
    proceedings, warrants, preservation demands, disclosure requests,  
    compliance notices, administrative monetary penalties, fines, damages,  
    injunctive relief, class actions, legal fees, expert fees and disbursements. 

 
PART X – TRAINING 

36. Within 60 days of the implementation of this Policy, all Library Staff, Board  
      Members and Volunteers are required to attend a mandatory training on this  
       Policy (the “Training”). 
 
37. The Training shall be prepared and conducted by Library Administration.  
 
38. Records of attendance at the Training shall be taken and tracked by the  
      Library.  



Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation Compliance Policy #2023-12               Page 9 of 9 

 
39. New hire Training: all Staff, Board Members and Volunteers of the Library  
     shall be required to attend the Training, as soon as is possible after joining  
     the Library and/or becoming a Volunteer for the Library.  
 
40. Refresher Training:  Refresher Training shall be conducted on an annual  
      basis. Attendance at the refresher Training shall be mandatory for all Library  
      Staff, Board Members and Volunteers. 
 

PART XI – AUDIT 
41. The Library shall conduct an annual audit of its electronic communication 

practices, to ensure compliance with this Policy (the “Audit”).  
 
42. Notwithstanding section 38, at the Library’s sole and absolute discretion, the  
      Library may from time to time conduct an audit of its electronic  
      communication practices to ensure compliance with this Policy (the “Random  
      Audit”). 
 
43. In the event the Annual or Random Audit discloses discrepancies between  
      this Policy and the Library’s communication practices, such discrepancies  
      shall be addressed by the Library to ensure compliance with the Policy, as  
      soon as is reasonably possible. 

 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, May 15, 2023, 
Motion Number: 2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #2019-13, approved May 21, 2019, Motion #2019.45; and Policy 
#2015-03, Approved February 17, 2015, Motion #2015.21 



SUBJECT:    RULES OF CONDUCT POLICY 

Policy No:    2023-13  

Date:    May 15, 2023 

Review Date:   May 2027 

Pages:    5 

 PURPOSE 

The Rules of Conduct encourage behaviour that supports the Library’s mission and 

values.  It applies everywhere the Library conducts its business; whether on Library 

property, in the community, over the phone or email, or on our online channels. The 

rules of conduct are posted to ensure the comfort and protection of all persons who use 

the facilities of the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library. 

POLICY 

General 

The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is a gathering place for the exchange of ideas where all 

are welcome. The cooperation of all who attend the Library is required to maintain an 

environment conducive to the enjoyable and productive use of the facility. 

As a public library, we respect individual rights, while recognizing that they must be 

balanced with the rights of others. Our goal is to deliver excellent service in a shared, 

community space that is welcoming and safe for all visitors and employees. 

Application 

This policy applies to all visitors to the Innisfil ideaLAB & Library facilities and properties, 

including virtual spaces. 

8c.01.01



RULES OF CONDUCT POLICY #2023-13                                                 Page 2 of 5 

 

 

Definitions 

Intoxicant is defined as an intoxicating agent, or anything that causes intoxication. 

 

Library premises include the building, and the surrounding parking areas, walkways, 

and green areas (as applicable) up to the property lines. 

 

Suspension means a member of the public is prohibited from entering Library buildings 

and/or from being on any Library Property at any time or for any reason for the duration 

of the suspension. 

 

Weapon means any object, concealed or otherwise, which may be used to injure or 

intimidate. 

 

Guidelines 

Conduct in the Library is subject to legislation including but not necessarily limited to: 

The Criminal Code of Canada, The Ontario Human Rights Code, The Accessibility for 

Ontarians with Disabilities Act 2005 and its accompanying regulations, Accessibility 

Standards for Customer Service Ontario Regulation 429/07 and Integrated Accessibility 

Standards Ontario Regulation 191/11, The Municipal Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, and The Ontario Child and Family Services Act. 

 

To maintain the health and well-being of Library staff, customers and visitors, and to 

ensure that all customers can enjoy access to Library resources and services, the 

following Rules of Conduct have been adopted. 

  

On Library premises: 

  

● The use of insulting or threatening language, harassment, physical abuse, 

assault, generally disruptive/inappropriate/illegal behaviour; carrying, displaying 

or using weapons; loitering will be cause for removal and/or prosecution of the 

offender(s).   

● Property and materials must be treated with respect. Persons committing acts of 

vandalism; wilful damage and/or theft of Library equipment or materials will be 

subject to prosecution under Canada’s Criminal Code.   

● Any behaviour which disrupts or prevents others from accessing/using Library 

services, including verbal and physical intimidation and harassment, is not 

permitted. 



RULES OF CONDUCT POLICY #2023-13                                                 Page 3 of 5 

 

● Bringing items onto Library premises that could disrupt others’ ability to use 

Library services or could cause damage to the facility or equipment is not 

permitted. 

● Petitioning, posting of flyers, soliciting or engaging in commercial activity are 

prohibited unless authorized by the Library. 

● Parents or guardians are responsible for the supervision of their children. 

Children requiring supervision are not to be left unattended in the Library as per 

Section 79. (3) of Ontario’s Child and Family Services Act. 

● Smoking and vaping is not permitted inside Library buildings or outside Library 

buildings within 20 metres of any entrance as per the current Town of Innisfil By-

Law. 

● Persons under the influence of intoxicants may be asked to leave or may be 

removed. 

● Food and beverages are permitted in designated areas. 

● Animals in Library programs and animals subject to current Accessibility 

Legislation are welcome; other animals are not permitted. 

● Rollerblade and skateboard use is not permitted inside Library buildings, nor is 

the wearing of ice skates. 

● Sleeping in the Library is not permitted. 

● Shoes and shirts must be worn inside Library facilities. 

● Customers must comply with the appropriate use of the Internet and its 

resources as outlined in current Library policies. 

● Photography, digital imaging, filming or video recording within the Library must 

be authorized by Library staff. 

● Customers may be required to make available for inspection all bags, briefcases, 

purses, knapsacks, containers, books and papers.   

 

Any individual asked to leave or removed from Library premises by Staff and/or the 

appropriate authorities may be banned from Library premises either on a temporary or 

permanent basis.  Staff may issue a Notice of Trespass Pursuant to the Trespass to 

Property Act, RSO 1990, c. T.21, S.3.  If deemed necessary, South Simcoe Police 

Service may be called to aid in the enforcement of this Policy and/or to distribute a 

Notice of Trespass order. Trespassing while under an active Notice of Trespass will not 

be tolerated and may result in an extension of the original trespass notice time period. 

 

Suspension of Library Privileges  

Anyone choosing to breach or disrespect Library policies or refusing to modify 

behaviours or activities may be subject to suspension of Library privileges. Suspended 

individuals will not have access to Library facilities, property, services and resources for 



RULES OF CONDUCT POLICY #2023-13                                                 Page 4 of 5 

 

the duration of the suspension. Suspensions are imposed at the discretion of Library 

Staff.  

 

Suspended individuals will be informed of how they violated the Rules of Conduct Policy 

and suspensions will be based on the severity of the breach as follows:  

 

One Day to One Month Suspension  

● Minor breach of Library rules  

Notice of Trespass: Three Month 

● Major or repeated breaches of the Library’s Rules of Conduct Policy  

● Repeated breaches will result in progressive extensions to the Notice of 

Trespass  

Notice of Trespass: Six Month, One Year, Permanent 

● Illegal behaviour, abuse of staff members or visitors, damage to Library property 

● Repeated breaches will result in progressive extensions to the Notice of 

Trespass  

 

Appeals to Notice of Trespass  

Appeals to a Notice of Trespass must be sent to the Library in writing, to the attention of 

the CEO. Contact details can be found on the Library website.  All appeals must include 

the appellant’s full name and mailing address.  The CEO may appoint a designate to 

review the appeal.  Decisions to appeals will be delivered in writing and all decisions of 

the CEO are final.  Notices of Trespass are active until the expiration date. During the 

appeal process, if the appellant accesses Library property, their appeal will become 

void.  

 

Reinstatement of Library Privileges  

Upon expiration of a Notice of Trespass, suspended individuals may be required to 

review the Rules of Conduct Policy, with a Library Staff member, before privileges are 

reinstated. 

  



RULES OF CONDUCT POLICY #2023-13                                                 Page 5 of 5 

 

   

Related Policies 

Workplace Violence Prevention 

Safety, Security and Emergencies in the Library 

   

  

Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, May 15, 2023, Motion Number 2023.XX  

  

Supersedes Policy Number: 2020-23, approved September 21, 2020, Motion #2020.69; 

and Policy #2014-01, approved January 20, 2014, Motion #2014.06 & Policy #2010-16, 

approved June 14, 2010, Motion #2010.49; and 

Policy #2006-14, approved April 10, 2006, Motion #2006.37; and 

Policy #2001-09, approved September 13, 1999, Motion #99.36. 


	2a - 2023MAY15 - FINAL
	5a.01.01 2023APR17-Board Minutes Draft
	5b.01.01 Letter from Mayor Dollin
	5b.02.01 Springwater library postpones presentation over safety concerns - Orillia News
	5b.03.01 Springwater Public Library_s drag queen..
	5b.04.01 Libraries are in the political crosshai...back against U.S 2
	5b.05.01 Truth & Reconciliation Plan - FOPL
	5b.06.01 ChatGPT Is a Tipping Point for AI
	5b.07.01 This 22-year-old is trying to save us f..
	5b.08.01 Third of UK librarians asked to censor ..
	5b.09.01 Goodbye from Susan Baues
	5b10.01 Expan_sion of lib_rary hours is great policy
	5c.01.01 April 2023 CEO Report
	April 2023 CEO Report Title Page
	April 2023 Board Report

	7a.01.01 Municipal Council Report April 2023
	7c.01.01 LIB-03-2023Finance Committee Q1 Report
	7c.01.02 Appendix A Q1 2023 Library Operating Results
	7c.01.03 Appendix B Q1 2023 Capital Budget Results
	7d.01.01 2023.04.20 JHSC Meeting Agenda Minutes
	7e.01.01 LIB-04-2023 Staff Report-Q1 Collections-May 2023
	7f.01.01 LIB-05-2023 Economic and Social Value of Innisfil ideaLAB and Library
	7f.01.02 Appendix A InnisfilPL_Economic_Social_Value_Study_2023_V4
	8. Policy Change Summary
	8a.01.01 E - Mileage Policy#E-2023-11 + appendices
	8a.01.01 E - Mileage Policy#E-2023-11 - Clean
	8a.01.01 Appendix 1 KM Reimbursement 2022
	8a.01.01 Appendix 2-2023 -Car Pooling Form DRAFT

	8b.01.01 CASL Policy#2023-12 - CLEAN
	8c.01.01 Rules of Conduct Policy - CLEAN



